
Mayor Oscar D. Montoya 
Mayor Pro-Tern Joe Martinez 

Commissioner Armando Garcia 

�a,.. 
$ 4 inerCedes 

MERCEDES CITY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 21, 2022-6:30 P.M. 
MERCEDES CITY HALL -COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

400 S. OHIO A VE., MERCEDES, TX 78570 

Commissioner Jacob Howell 
Commissioner Ruben Saldana 

City Manager Alberto Perez 

"At any time during the course of this meeting, the City Commission may retire to Executive Session under Texas Government Code 551.071 (2) to confer with its legal 
counsel on any subject matter on this agenda in which the duty of the attorney to the City Commission under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the 
State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. Further, at any time during the course of this meeting, the City Commission may 
retire to Executive Session to deliberate on any subject slated for discussion at this meeting, as may be permitted under one or more of the exceptions to the Open Meetings 
Act set forth in Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter D of the Texas Government Code." 

1. Call Meeting to Order
2. Establish Quorum
3. Invocation
4. Pledge of Allegiance
5. Open Forum-

Maximum length of time of forum is forty-five minutes with individual presentations limited to a maximum of five minutes. The City Commission can take no
formal action on any city related matter discussed during the open forum. Persons who wish to participate in this portion of the meeting shall sign up as they arrive,
indicating the topic about which they wish to speak. No one will be able to sign up AFTER 6:20 PM. The information required for signing up must be completed
by that time. No public comments will be allowed during any agenda item unless recognized by the Mayor or if the item requires a public hearing. State your name
and address before beginning your presentation. 

There can be no comments about specific employees. By Charter, the City Manager is exclusively given authority over personnel matters, including complaints 
against city personnel. All complaints against city personnel will be addressed pursuant to Mercedes Personnel Policies. 
Comments must not be repeated and the Commission is not required to answer any question from the public. Any person who decides to directly question any 
member of the City Commission will be asked to discontinue their comments. The City Secretary's office representative will be responsible for notifying each 
presenter that their five-minute time limit has expired. 

6. Consent Agenda: (All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Governing Body and will be enacted by one 
motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items; however, if discussion is desired, that item(s) will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and will be considered separately.)

a. Approval of Minutes for Meeting(s) held June 7, 2022.
b. Second and final reading of Ordinance No 2022-09 to update the Planning Permit Fees

7. City Manager Comments

a. Recognition of Mercedes Police Department Personnel
8. Ordinance/Resolutions: Present, Discuss, Consider, and Possibly Take Action Regarding:

a. Ordinance# 2022-10 To rezone Grosshauser's Subdivision Lot Sand 6, and the Est 3 Acres of Lot 4 from 
Class "N" Newly Annexed to Class "C-1" Apartment District; Applicant: Tiki Land Company (ACM)

9. Management Item(s): Present, Discuss, Consider, and Possibly Take Action Regarding:

a. The National Fitness Campaign (ACM)
b. Approving the Paramedic Certification Program. (Fire Chief/State Rep)
c. Directing the City Manager to develop an Inflation/Recession Emergency Financial Plan (Comm Howell 

& Martinez)
d. Directing City manager to develop an RFP for Broadband Service (Comm Howell & Martinez)

10. Bids/Contracts: Present, Discuss, Consider, and Possibly Take Action Regarding:

a. Directing City Manager and Legal to execute contract with Marco A. Arredondo, Inc for Energy Representative 

Services.(City Manager)

b. Approval of additional Laser Lux Printer for the Police Department. (Int. Police Chief)

c. Approval of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Addendum between the Children's Advocacy Center of 
Hidalgo and Starr Counties and the Mercedes Police Department. (Int. Police Chief)

11. Monthly Departmental Reports:

a. Police Department, Fire Department, Library, Finance, City Secretary/HR, Planning, Municipal Court

12. Executive Session: Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), Section 551.072 

(Deliberation regarding Real Property), Section 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and Section 551.087 (Economic Development) 





MERCEDES CITY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 7, 2022 – 6:30 P.M. 
MERCEDES CITY HALL – COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Oscar D. Montoya Sr.  Mayor 

Joe Martinez   Mayor Pro-Tem 

Armando Garcia  Commissioner 

Jacob Howell   Commissioner 

Ruben Saldana   Commissioner 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Alberto Perez   City Manager 

    Martie Garcia-Vela  City Attorney 

    Joselynn Castillo  City Secretary 

    Javier Ramirez   Asst. City Manager 

    Kristine Longoria  Human Resources 

    Ervin Vilchis   IT Assistant 

    Blanca Sanchez   Interim Chief of Police 

    Meredith Hernandez  Chief Accountant 

    Joaquin Hernandez  Public Works Director 

    Richard Morin   Recreation Direction 

    Javier Campos   Fire Chief 

    Marisol Vidales   Library Director 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: Axel Vallejo, Brianna Casares, Isaias Rodriguez, Isaac Huacuja, Ramon Mejia, 

Hector Castillo, Yolanda Molina, Rick Ramos 

 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Mayor Montoya welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

2. ESTABLISH QUORUM 

All members of the Commission were present which constitutes a full quorum.  

3. INVOCATION 

Mayor Montoya said the Invocation. 

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Saldana led in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

5. OPEN FORUM 

- Mr. Ramon Mejia addressed the Commission about professionalism due to the agenda 

having the former Commissioners listed at the top. He stated that a Commissioner’s 

platform was to stop the negativity and added that they are not negative, they are 

concerned. Mr. Mejia later stated he would like the sidewalks cleaned in front of the 

theater and recommends hiring a professional company to clean the downtown area. 

Mr. Mejia then welcomed the new Commission.  

- Mr. Hector Castillo addressed the Commission regarding the Keep Mercedes 

Beautiful project for a Butterfly Garden. Mr. Castillo stated that KMB now has 2 

National Certifications and they are working diligently on the Community Garden. 

1



- Ms. Yolanda Molina expressed her concern for the protection and security of the 

students at school. She stated that the people have been ignored and the City has hit 

rock bottom. Ms. Molina added that if the Commission is not listening to the 

community then they are not doing their service. Ms. Molina stated she takes pride in 

her city and streets and that there in no connection in Mercedes. She expects the 

Commission to do their job when representing the City.  

- Mr. Albert Cano thanked the Hidalgo County Precinct 1 Commissioner David 

Fuentes and Raul Sesin for the Drainage Improvements in Mercedes and the Mile 8 

North Road Improvements. He added that EMS was contacted and they were 

responsive and professional. Mr. Cano informed everyone of the call for EMS was a 

heart attack and EMS saved the patients life. He added that EMS was well trained and 

having the Commission support helps morale.     

6. CONSENT AGENDA: 

a. Approval of Minutes for Meeting(s) held May 17, 2022 & May 26, 2022. 

b. Approval of Budget Amendment from Human Resources to Police Vehicle 

Maintenance.  

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez made a motion to approve consent agenda items A & B. 

Commissioner Saldana seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed 

unanimously. 

7. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: 

a. Proclamation for the Mercedes High School Softball Team (Comm. Howell 

& Martinez. 

Mayor Montoya presented the proclamation to the Mercedes High School Softball 

Team.  

b. Recognition and Welcome of New Corporals 

The Corporals were not present for this item. No action required.  

c. Update on continued preparations for potential drop in revenue due to 

continued economic uncertainty. (Comm Howell & Martinez) 

Commissioner Howell stated that the national inflation rate has increased 8.6 

percent and are currently at 8.3 percent. He stated to prepare, the City needs to be 

proactive and have a financial plan in place. Commissioner Howell added he does 

not want to cut employees or services to the community. Mr. Perez stated he 

monitors the budget and the City has a fund policy was approved. He added that 

the city is well on the way to the target goal and the there is a 3-month reserves. 

Mr. Perez stated that his plan does not impact essential services and he there are 

monies due to un-filled positions. Mr. Perez agrees to solidify what the city is 

practicing.  

d. Update on TIRZ and Opportunity Zone 

Mr. Perez informed the Commission that the TIRZ is being straightened out and 

the County Auditors are reviewing all the information sent by the City. He stated 

that the TIRZ is for business incentives. Commissioner Howell stated he would 

like job creation to bring in revenues to the City by stating the larger tax base, the 

more opportunity to provide.  

2



 Mayor Montoya called the meeting into executive session at 7:08 p.m.  

8. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

a. Discussion and Consultation with Attorney regarding personnel matters -Section 551.074 

b. Consultation with Attorney regarding industrial waste – Section 551.071 

c. Consultation with Attorney regarding update on legal matters – Section 551.071 

d. Deliberation with Attorney regarding Real Property Encroachment – Section 551.072 

e. Deliberation with Attorney regarding procurement of Real Property – Section 551.072 

f. Deliberation with Attorney regarding contract for Waste Connections – Section 551.071 

g. Consultation with Attorney regarding Water Rate Study – Section 551.071 

Mayor Montoya called the meeting back to order at 9:56 p.m. At this time, the Commission moved to 

item 9D. 

9. ORDINANCE/RESOLUTIONS: Present, Discuss, Consider, and Possible Take Action Regarding: 

a. Resolution #2022-07 for Request to Increase the Credit Card Limit. 

Ms. Meredith Hernandez addressed the Commission requesting to increase the 

credit card limit from $10,000 to $20,000 and requested an additional card for the 

same account. Ms. Hernandez added that due to COVID restriction being lifted 

there has been more travel and Hotels are no longer accepting checks; therefore, 

the credit card is used for the payment and the credit card is mostly used for 

emergencies. Mr. Perez informed the Commission that a P.O Request is required 

and approval needed prior to the release of the credit card. Mayor Pro-Tem 

Martinez motioned for approval. Commissioner Saldana seconded. Upon a called 

vote, the motion passed unanimously.  

b. Resolution #2022-08 to update Bank Signatories 

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez made a motion to approve resolution 2022-08. 

Commissioner Saldana seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed 

unanimously.  

c. Resolution #2022-09 to approve the Funding Opportunity Announcement for 

WaterSMART Drought Response Program: Drought Resiliency Projects for 

Fical Year 2023. 

Commissioner Howell made a motion to approve. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez 

seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously. City Engineer 

Isaac Huacuja informed the Commission that the resolution is to request approval 

to submit for a grant. The grant they are applying for is a 50% match up to three 

million dollars. The project of for a water reservoir for clean drinking water and 

to possibly provide a 30 day water storage for three weeks. Mr. Perez stated that if 

the City gets awarded then the city can still decline if its not feasible.  

d. Resolution #2022-10 to resell properties acquired through tax forclosure 

proceedings.  

Commissioner Howell made a motion to approve Resolution 2022-10. Mayor 

Pro-Tem Martinez seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously.  

At this time the Commission returned to item 9A.  

3



e. Ordinance #2022-08 to implement the recommended water rate schedule 

based on recommendations from the Water Rate Study. 

Mr. Jeff Snowden presented to the Commission the water rate study. He stated he 

recommends the City go easier on residential and heavier on Multi-Family and 

Small Business and Outside City limits. Mr. Snowden provided a comparison of 

the rates in Mercedes to the surrounding cities. Mr. Snowden stated the Mercedes 

had the same minimum rate for all meters. He stated that the recommendation will 

address the bond rating concerns, will pay operations, pay debts, and have 

revenues. He recommended a gradual increase for the next five years with the first 

increase being July 1, 2022 then October 1, 2023. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez made 

a motion to approve. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a called vote, the 

motion passed unanimously. Commissioner Saldana thanked Mr. Snowden for his 

work on the Water Rate Study.  

f. Ordinance #2022-09 to update the Planning and Building Permit Fees.  

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez made a motion to approve. Commissioner Saldana 

seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously.  

10. MANAGEMENT ITEMS: Present, Discuss, Consider, and Possibly Take Action Regarding: 

a. Elida Fest Sponsorship Request 

Mr. Rick Ramos addressed the Commission about a project they began to bring 

Tejano music to the schools. The project included having a music festival in 

Mercedes at the Rio Grande Livestock Show Grounds for an academic 

scholarship and is requesting sponsorship from the City. Mr. Ramos stated they 

are looking at having the event annually. The concert will be July 30, 2022. He 

stated the sales tax revenues will go to Mercedes and La Quinta will be the 

official hotel. Mr. Ramos stated they will have five digital billboards. At a 

question, Mr. Ramos estimated $90K in revenues and stated that they will donate 

half of the proceeds to the scholarship fund. Commissioner Howell made a 

motion to approve. Commissioner Saldana seconded. Upon a called vote, the 

motion passed unanimously. Mr. Ramos added that the tickets will be $10 for the 

concert.  

b. Appointing a Member from the Commission to the DCM Marketing 

Committee 

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez made a motion to appoint Commissioner Howell to the 

DCM Marketing Committee. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a called vote, 

the motion passed unanimously. 

c. Approval on new Appointment of Member to the Keep Mercedes Beautiful 

Committee.  

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez made a motion to appoint Ms. Janet Schofield. 

Commissioner Saldana seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed 

unanimously. 

d. Partnership to promote improved maintenance of the downtown area.  

Commissioner Saldana stated that he was briefed by EDC about entering an 

agreement to clean the downtown area to promote business development. 

4



Commissioner Garcia stated this would revitalize the downtown area. No action 

was required.  

11. BIDS/CONTRACTS: Discuss, Consider, and Possibly Take Action Regarding: 

a. Directing City Manager and Legal to renew the contract with Waste 

Connections 

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez made a motion to proceed as discussed in executive 

session. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed 

unanimously.  

12. OPEN SESSION: Present, Discuss, Consider, and Possibly Take Action Regarding: 

a.  Item A listed in executive session. 

No action was taken on this item. 

b. Item B listed in executive session 

Mayor Pro- Tem Martinez made a motion to proceed as discussed in executive 

session. Commissioner Saldana seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed 

unanimously.  

c. Item C listed in executive session 

Commissioner Howell made a motion to proceed with legal team and move 

forward. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed 

unanimously.  

d. Item D listed in executive session  

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned to proceed as discussed in executive session. 

Commissioner Howell seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed 

unanimously.  

13. ADJOURNMENT 

Commissioner Saldana motioned to adjourn. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez seconded. Upon a 

called vote, the motion passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 10:59 P.M.  

5



ORDINANCE NO. 2022 - 09 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 2007-21 ADOPTING VARIOUS STANDARD 

CODES RELATING TO PERMIT AND INSPECTION ACTIVITIES OF THE CITY OF 

MERCEDES, HIDALGO COUNTY, TEXAS; AMENDING EXHIBIT “A” FEE SCHEDULE 

BUIDLING PERMIT FEES; ESTABLISHING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City of Mercedes to update the fee schedule attached as Exhibit “A” to 

undertake numerous tasks that deal with construction of buildings, planning and developing of properties. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF MERCEDES, TEXAS, 

THAT ORDINANCE  2008-11, ORDIANCE 2012-01 AND 2017-06, EXHIBIT “A” FEE 

SCHEDULE IS HERBY AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:  

SECTION I. Permit Fees 

(a) Schedule of fees. The following fees shall be charged for the work shown. Other fees may be

required under other ordinances. In the event that a permit is to be issued for work not shown

below, a fee shall be charged based upon a category of work shown which most nearly resembles

the wok intended. The permit fees listed may be doubled if work is started prior to the permit

being issued.

(b) Investigation fee. Any person who commences any work on any building or structure; or any

electrical, gas, plumbing, or mechanical system before obtaining the necessary permits shall be

subject to an investigation fee equal to the fee included in the permit fee schedule. The

investigation fee shall be in addition to the regular permit fee.

a. Contractor Registration. It shall be unlawful for any person who is not registered by the

City as a sign, concrete, electrical, plumbing, mechanical, irrigations, house moving, fuel

tank installer, maintenance worker for apartments (plumbing/mechanical), or general

contractor to secure a permit as provided for in this code, except that homeowners may

obtain permits to perform work at a residence for which they have a homestead tax

exemption and in which they live.

b. Method of registration. To register with the City as a contractor, application shall be made

in writing on forms furnished by the building Official for that purpose along with the

registration fee as required in this section.

c. Contractor registration renewal. Every contractor registration provided for in this code

shall expire one year following the date of its issuance and shall be renewed by the

building official upon application and upon the payment to the City of the required

renewal fee.

SECTION II. Cumulative Provision 

Any ordinance, regulation, policy, or executive order that is in conflict with the fees reflected in 

Section I and Exhibit “A” of this ordinance shall be deemed superseded, null, and void. 

SECTION III. Severability Provision. 

6



 Should any sentence, provision, phrase or specific fee be deemed to be invalid or unconstitutional 

by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining components shall be deemed to be in full force and 

effect. 

 

SECTION IV. Effective Date. 
 

 The fees established by this ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon publication of the 

caption of this ordinance in a newspaper of general jurisdiction.  

 

READ, DISCUSSED, AND APPROVED ON THIS THE 7TH DAY OF JUNE, 2022. 1ST READING OF ORDINANCE. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON THIS THE 21ST DAY OF JUNE, 2022. 2ND READING OF ORDINANCE.  

 

 

        _______________________________ 

        Oscar D. Montoya Sr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________      _______________________________ 

Joselynn Castillo, City Secretary     Martie Garcia-Vela, City Attorney 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

7



 
EXHIBIT “A” 
Fee Schedule 

 
Base Residential Building Permit Fee Schedule  

 
Residential Building Permit Fee – Based on Square Feet     

 
0-1,200 sq. ft.    0.30 cents per square ft. 

 
1,201 – 2,000 sq. ft.   0.30 cents per square ft. 

      
2001 sq. ft. and up    0.30 cents per square ft. 

       
*A non-refundable plan review fee of $150.00 shall be assessed to all Residential 
building permit applications at time of submittal. 

 
 

 
 

Base Commercial Building Permit Fee Schedule  
 

Commercial Building permit fees charged, including Multi-Family, for: New 
Construction, Additions, Alterations, Remodels & Repairs of a building, shall be 
based on the current International Code Council building schedule of valuation 
amounts per square foot of improvement adopted every year. 
 
 Construction Value   Fee        
 
$0 and up to $2,000   $65.00 
 
$2,001 and up to $25,000  $66.00 for 1st $2,000 
      Plus $13.25 ea. addtl. $1,000 or fraction 
 
$25,001 and up to $50,000  $367.25 first $25,000 
      Plus $10.25 ea. addtl. $1,000 or fraction 
 

8



$50,001 and up to $100,000  $605.25 first $50,000 
      Plus $7.25 ea. addtl. $1,000 or fraction 
 
$100,001 and up to $500,000  $932.25 first $100,000 
      Plus $5.25 ea. addtl. $1,000 or fraction 
 
$500,001 and up to $1,000,000  $3,032.25 first $500,000 
      Plus $5.25 ea. addtl. $1,000 or fraction 
 
 
more than $1,000,000   $5,263.25 first $1,000,000 
      Plus $3.25 ea. addtl. $1,000 or fraction 
 
*A non-refundable plan review fee shall be assessed to all Commercial and Multi-
Family Building (three or more dwelling units in a building), Single, and Two-
Family Residential building permit applications at the time of submittal. A building 
permit application is not considered received until the plan review fee has been 
paid. The non-refundable plan review fee shall be assessed at 35% of the building 
permit fee. 
              
 

Contractor Permit Fees 
1. There shall be a license registration fee of one hundred twenty-five dollars 

($150.00) for all electrical, plumbing, and mechanical contractors 
conducting business in the City of Mercedes. 
 

2. There shall be a renewal fee of seventy-five dollars ($100.00) for all 
electrical, plumbing, and mechanical contractors conducting business in the 
City of Mercedes. 

              
 

Demolition Permit Fees 
0 to 1,000 sq. ft.      $100.00 + inspection fee 
Plus for every addtl. 500 sq. over 1,000 sq. ft. $20.00  
 
Inspection fee      $25.00 
 

9



 
Demolition Permit Fees Continued 

 
Reinspection fee      $50.00 
              
 

 
 
 

Mechanical Permit Fees 
Applies to new or alterations/additions to existing systems 

 
Base Permit Fee      $45.00 
Reinspection      $25.00 
 
Heating, Ventilation, Ductwork, Air Conditioning and Refrigeration Systems: 
1 ton basis for the first 4 tons (each)   $6.00 
Each ton between 4 and 10 tons   $3.00 
Each ton above 10 tons      $1.50 
 
All boilers (based on BTU input) 
33,000 BTU to 165,000 BTU    $5.00 
1650,001 BTU to 330,000 BTU    $10.00 
330,001 BTU to 1,165,000 BTU    $15.00 
1,165,000 BTU to 3,300,000 BTU   $20.00 
Over 3,300,001 BTU     $25.00 
              
 

Plumbing Permit Fees 
Base Permit Fee      $45.00 
Reinspection Fee      $50.00 
Each Plumbing Fixture     $5.00 
Floor Drain or Trap      $12.00 
Water Heater      $6.00 
Installation/Repairs of Water Piping   $12.00 
Repair/alt. of Drainage or Vent Piping   $12.00 
Vacuum Breakers or Backflow Device 

10



installed after install of piping     $3.00 
Irrigation/Sprinkler System    $50.00 
Grease Trap        $25.00 
Septic Tank       $25.00 
              

 
Gas Permit Fees 

Base Permit Fee      $45.00 
Reinspection Fee      $35.00 
Gas Line Test      $30.00 
Gas Line Repair      $10.00 
              
 

Electrical Permit Fees 
Base Permit Fee      $45.00 
Reinspection Fee      $35.00 
New Meter Service     $25.00 
Replace/Upgrade Meter Service   $20.00 
Reconnect (Residential)     $35.00 
Reconnect (Commercial)     $60.00 
Temporary Pole Fee     $15.00 
Working Clearance      $35.00 
Each Circuit       $4.00 
Each Motor       $2.50 
Each Sign or Decorative Light    $2.50 
Each 220 Volt Fixture     $2.50 
Each Outlet/Light Switch     $0.40 
              

 
RES-Check Compliance Report Fees 

Review of RES-Check Compliance Report (Residential)  $20.00 
Review of RES-Check Compliance Report (Nonresidential) $50.00 
              

 
 
 

Certificate of Occupancy Fee 

11



Excludes Single-Family 
0 -1,999 sq.ft. $75.00 
2,000 – 4,999 sq.ft. $150.00 
5,000 – 7,999 sq.ft. $250.00 
Over 8,000 sq. ft.  $400.00 

Administrative Fees 
Reprint of any Lost Permits 
Lien Processing (any type) 
Conditional Use Permit  
Conditional Use Renewal  
Rezone  
Variance 
Building Code Variances  
Business Licenses  
Subdivision Plat Fee 
Plat Filing Fee 

Replat Filing Fee  
Pre-Construction Conference 
Materials Testing Fee 
Development Inspection Fee 
Multi-Page Questionnaire 
Zoning Verification Letter 

$30.00 
$85.00 
$200.00 
$25.00 
$300.00 
$250.00 
$100.00 
$25.00 
$600, plus a $30 per lot fee 
$100.00 (10 acres or less) 
$150.00 (10 – 50 acres) 
$250.00 (50+ acres) 
$250.00 
$100.00 
3.5% of construction cost 
3% of construction cost 
$150.00 
$15.00 

Health Inspections/Code Enforcement Fees 
All Health Inspections fees are charged yearly and include quarterly inspections 

Restaurants/Convenience/Grocery $250.00 
Bars/Lounges $250.00 
Meat and Seafood  $250.00 
Tortillerias  $250.00 
Day-Care and Group Homes $250.00 
Mowing Fees per lot up to ½ acre 

12



plus $50.00 every ½ acre or less there after $250.00 

Vendor Fees 
Produce Vendors (3 months consecutively)   $100.00 
Holiday Vendors (1-14 days) $25.00 per day  
Mobile Food Vendors (3 months consecutively) $100.00 
Event Permit $75.00 + $15.00 per booth 
Benefit Fundraiser Permit $50.00 
Nonprofit Fundraiser Permit $25.00 (Tax Exempt Certificate) 
Carnival/Circus Operating Permit $500.00 
Carnival Set-up Inspection Fee  $100.00 

13



CONSENT ITEM: 

DATE: June 14, 2021 

FROM: Blanca Sanchez, Interim Chief of Police 

ITEM: Recognition of Mercedes Police Department Personnel 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Recognize & Present investigators and patrol officers with Certificate of 
Excellence in honor of their outstanding performance and dedication in solving some recent cases. 

BOARD REVIEW/CITIZEN FEEDBACK: 

ALTERNATIVES/OPTIONS:  

FISCAL IMPACT:   

Proposed Expenditure/(Revenue): Account Number(s): 

$0.00 

Finance Review by: 

LEGAL REVIEW: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

DRAFT MOTION: 

AGENDA ITEM NO. ____ 7A

14



8A

15



16



17



18



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-10 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE CLASSIFICATION FOR 

ZONING PURPOSES OF THE FOLLOWING TRACT OF LAND: 

GROSSHAUSER’S SUBDIVISION LOT 5 AND 6, AND THE EAST 

3 ACRES OF LOT 4, FROM “N” NEWLY ANNEXED TO CLASS 

“C” APARTMENT DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR A SAVINGS 

AND REPEAL CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

WHEREAS, on the 21st day of June, 2022 a public hearing was held for the purpose of 

hearing any objections as to why: Grosshauser’s Subdivision Lot 5 and 6, and the East 3 

Acres of Lot 4, Mercedes, Hidalgo County, Texas, should be rezoned and classified as 

follows: from a Class “A” Newly Annexed to a Class “C” Apartment District.     

WHEREAS, the City Commission at its Regular Meeting of June 21st, 2022, having 

considered the rezoning of the above-described property as listed in the foregoing section 

and having heard the pros and cons as to such rezoning request, is of the opinion that the 

aforementioned rezoning is in the best interest of the City of Mercedes, Texas. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF MERCEDES, TEXAS: 

Section 1:  GROSSHAUSER’S SUBDIVISION LOT 5 AND 6, AND THE EAST 3 

ACRES OF LOT 4, FROM “N” NEWLY ANNEXED TO CLASS “C” APARTMENT 

DISTRICT, Mercedes, Hidalgo County, Texas, should be rezoned and classified as 

follows: from a Class “N” Newly Annexed to a Class “B” Two Family Residence 

District.   

Section 2: That the aforementioned rezoning of the above property be incorporated into 

the official map of the City of Mercedes, Texas by the City Planner of said City. 

Section 3: That if any provision, section, subsection, phrase, paragraph, sentence, clause 

or portion of this Ordinance shall for any reason be declared invalid, such invalidity shall 

not affect the remaining provisions of this Ordinance or their application of persons or 

sets of circumstances and to this end, all provisions of this Ordinance or parts of 

Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section 4: This Ordinance shall become and be effective in accordance with the City 

Charter of the City of Mercedes, Texas and the laws of the State of Texas. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 21st 

DAY OF JUNE 2022. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING THIS THE ____ 

DAY OF __________, 2022. 

CITY OF MERCEDES 

_____________________________ 

Oscar D. Montoya, Sr., Mayor 
19



ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________ _____________________________ 

Joselynn Castillo Martie Garcia Vela 

City Secretary City Attorney   

20



Memo 
To: Javier Ramirez, Assistant City Manager 

From: Melissa Ramirez, Executive Director 

CC:   File 

Date: 6/16/2022 

Re: National Fitness Campaign 

Blue Cross BlueShield of Texas has partnered with National Fitness Campaign to provide world class 
fitness for free. They are targeting communities struggling with high obesity and diabetes rates.  Across 
the nation, NFC is building fitness courts in public parks.  Blue Cross BlueShield of Texas is providing 
$50K grants.  Communities must contribute between $117K-$137K.    

The fitness court is 38ft x 38ft; it is made out of galvanized steel/carbon.  City Administration has 
identified HEB park as the ideal location.  Besides the court, NFC provides a fitness app.  City officials 
can utilize the app to gather information about the users.  

Funding 

At a meeting held June 15, 2022, the DCM Board of Directors agreed to contribute $70K towards the 
project with the hope the City will cover the remaining balance.     

Discussion: Will of the City Commission 

Item 9A

21



20
22

 B
lu

e 
C

ro
ss

 a
nd

 B
lu

e 
Sh

ie
ld

 o
f T

ex
as

 S
ta

te
w

id
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
Br

ie
fin

g
N

A
TI

O
N

A
L 

FI
TN

ES
S 

C
A

M
PA

IG
N

22



20
21

 F
EA

TU
RE

D
 A

RT
IS

T 
CO

LL
EC

TI
O

N
20

22
 F

EA
TU

RE
D

 A
RT

IS
T 

CO
LL

EC
TI

O
N

B
R

O
U

G
H

T 
TO

 Y
O

U
 B

Y
N

A
TI

O
N

A
L 

FI
TN

ES
S 

C
A

M
PA

IG
N

23



W
H

A
T

 W
E

 D
O

W
H

O
 W

E
 A

R
E

N
at

io
na

l F
itn

es
s 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
is

 a
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 
ba

se
d 

w
el

ln
es

s 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

fir
m

.
N

FC
 d

ev
el

op
s 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 w
ith

 c
iti

es
, s

ch
oo

ls
 

an
d 

sp
on

so
rs

 to
 b

ui
ld

 h
ea

lth
y 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.

24



U
SA

C
A

N
A

D
A

A
U

ST
R

A
LI

A

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
F

IT
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

C
A

M
PA

IG
N

 S
TO

RY

19
79

FI
TN

ES
S 

C
O

U
RT

® 
IN

V
EN

TE
D

19
8

0
-2

0
0

0
C

A
M

PA
IG

N
 

EX
PA

N
D

S

2
0

12
N

EW
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N
 &

 
W

O
RL

D
 C

LA
SS

 T
EA

M

M
A

R
K

 L
A

U
R

E
N

G
A

D
I 

A
M

IT
M

IT
C

H
 M

E
N

A
G

E
D

S
A

M
 L

U
C

E
N

T
E

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

FO
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 D

E
A

L 
D

E
S

IG
N

N
FC

 F
O

U
N

D
E

R

H
E

W
LE

T
T

 P
A

C
K

A
R

D

2
0

18
 -

 P
R

E
S

E
N

T
W

EL
C

O
M

IN
G

 O
U

R 
5

0
0

TH
 H

EA
LT

H
Y 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

2
0

3
0

N
FC

 R
EA

C
H

ES
 10

,0
00

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

IE
S

1
9

7
9

1
9

8
0

2
0

1
2

2
0

1
8

2
0

3
0

D
ES

IG
N

 T
EA

M

S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
 

St
an

fo
rd

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y

TH
E 

FI
R

ST
 F

IT
N

ES
S 

C
O

U
RT

®

10
,0

00
FI

TN
ES

S 
C

O
U

R
TS

®

3
C

O
U

N
TR

IE
S

25



BU
IL

D 
A 

FR
EE

 O
U

TD
O

O
R 

GY
M

 W
IT

H
IN

A 
10

 M
IN

UT
E 

BI
KE

 R
ID

E 
O

F 
EV

ER
Y 

AM
ER

IC
AN

O
U

R 
M

IS
SI

O
N

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
FI

T
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

C
AM

PA
IG

N
 M

IS
SI

O
N

Ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 H

ea
lth

y 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

®

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
F

IT
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

C
A

M
PA

IG
N

 M
IS

SI
O

N

B
U

IL
D

 H
EA

LT
H

Y
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

IE
S 

B
Y

 B
R

IN
G

IN
G

 
P

EO
P

LE
 O

U
TS

ID
E 

TO
 M

O
V

E 
EV

ER
Y

 D
A

Y.

O
U

R
 M

IS
SI

O
N

W
E 

M
A

KE
 W

O
RL

D
 C

LA
SS

 F
IT

N
ES

S 
FR

EE
!  

26



A
 C

O
M

P
R

EH
EN

SI
V

E 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 W

EL
LN

ES
S 

P
R

O
G

R
A

M

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
F

IT
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

20
22

 C
A

M
PA

IG
N

 O
V

ER
V

IE
W

A
M

B
A

SS
A

D
O

R 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

M
O

B
IL

E 
A

PPLA
U

N
C

H
 &

 
IM

PA
C

T

M
ED

IA
 &

 P
RE

SS
D

ES
IG

N
 &

 
PL

A
N

N
IN

G

G
RA

N
T 

FU
N

D
IN

G IN
ST

A
LL

AT
IO

N

SP
O

N
SO

R 
SU

PP
O

RT

FI
TN

ES
S 

C
O

U
R

T®

27



FI
TN

ES
S 

C
O

U
R

T®

FI
TN

ES
S 

C
O

U
RT

®
W

O
R

LD
S 

B
ES

T 
O

U
TD

O
O

R
 G

YM

28



 7
 M

O
V

EM
EN

T 
FU

LL
 B

O
D

Y 
W

O
RK

O
U

TS

C
O

RE
SQ

U
AT

PU
SH

LU
N

G
E

PU
LL

AG
IL

IT
Y

B
EN

D

FU
N

C
TI

O
N

A
L 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
 S

YS
TE

M
TH

O
U

SA
N

D
S 

O
F 

EX
ER

C
IS

ES
SC

IE
N

TI
FI

C
A

LL
Y 

D
ES

IG
N

ED

FI
TN

ES
S 

C
O

U
R

T®

29



“
”

FI
TN

ES
S 

C
O

U
RT

®

TI
TL

E 
TI

TL
E

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
F

IT
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

I a
m

 g
la

d 
to

 s
ee

 m
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ba
la

nc
e.

 
- C

ar
ol

 C
la

yb
ak

er
, S

en
io

r R
es

id
en

t o
f J

an
es

vi
lle

, W
I

A
D

U
LT

S 
O

F 
A

LL
 A

G
ES

 A
N

D
 A

B
IL

IT
Y

30



FI
TN

ES
S 

C
O

U
RT

® 
A

PP
C

A
M

PA
IG

N
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

31



N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
F

IT
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

A
M

B
A

SS
A

D
O

R 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

PR
E 

LA
U

N
C

H
SU

PP
O

RT
M

ED
IA

 &
 P

R
ES

S
LA

U
N

C
H

!
FR

EE
 W

O
R

KO
U

TS
 

&
 G

R
O

U
P 

C
LA

SS
ES

D
AT

A
 &

 IM
PA

C
T

A
 w

el
ln

es
s 

cu
ltu

re
 to

 e
ng

ag
e 

pe
op

le
 in

 h
ea

lth
y 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

! 

C
A

M
PA

IG
N

 S
ER

V
IC

ES

32



ST
A

N
D

A
RD

 D
ES

IG
N

 
FO

R 
BL

U
E 

C
RO

SS
 B

LU
E 

SH
IE

LD
 O

F 
TE

XA
S 

C
AM

PA
IG

N
 IN

 T
EX

AS

20
22

 F
EA

TU
RE

D
 A

RT
IS

T

LO
C

A
L 

A
RT

IS
T

Ad
di

tio
na

l F
un

di
ng

 R
eq

ui
re

d

Ad
di

tio
na

l F
un

di
ng

 R
eq

ui
re

d
N

o 
Ad

di
tio

na
l F

un
di

ng
 R

eq
ui

re
d

JE
AN

-M
IC

H
EL

 B
AS

Q
U

IA
T

DA
M

IN
 L

U
JA

N
 - 

SA
N

TA
 A

N
A,

 C
A

Ea
ch

 F
itn

es
s 

C
ou

rt
® 

is
 a

 o
ne

-o
f-a

-k
in

d 
w

or
k 

of
 a

rt
.  

 

FI
TN

ES
S 

C
O

U
RT

® 
PU

B
LI

C
 A

RT
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L 

F
IT

N
E

S
S

 C
A

M
PA

IG
N

33



A
 C

O
M

P
R

EH
EN

SI
V

E 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 W

EL
LN

ES
S 

P
R

O
G

R
A

M

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
F

IT
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

20
22

 C
A

M
PA

IG
N

 O
V

ER
V

IE
W

A
M

B
A

SS
A

D
O

R 
TR

A
IN

IN
G

M
O

B
IL

E 
A

PPLA
U

N
C

H
 &

 
IM

PA
C

T

M
ED

IA
 &

 P
RE

SS
D

ES
IG

N
 &

 
PL

A
N

N
IN

G

G
RA

N
T 

FU
N

D
IN

G IN
ST

A
LL

AT
IO

N

SP
O

N
SO

R 
SU

PP
O

RT

FI
TN

ES
S 

C
O

U
R

T®

34



N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
F

IT
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N 10
,0

00
+ 

Fi
tn

es
s 

C
ou

rt
s®

 c
om

in
g 

to
 A

m
er

ic
a 

by
 2

03
0

BU
IL

D
 A

 F
RE

E 
O

U
TD

O
O

R 
FI

TN
ES

S 
C

O
U

RT
® 

W
IT

H
IN

 
A

 10
 M

IN
U

TE
 B

IK
E 

RI
D

E 
O

F 
EV

ER
Y 

A
M

ER
IC

A
N

O
U

R 
G

O
A

L

N
FC

 2
02

2 
N

AT
IO

N
W

ID
E 

ST
AT

U
S

35



LI
M

IT
ED

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 F
O

R 
U

P 
TO

 2
0 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S 
IN

 2
02

2

20
22

 T
EX

A
S 

ST
AT

EW
ID

E 
C

A
M

PA
IG

N

PR
ES

EN
TE

D
 B

Y 
B

LU
E 

C
RO

SS
 A

N
D

 B
LU

E 
SH

IE
LD

 O
F 

TE
X

A
S

B
lu

e
C

ro
ss

 B
lu

e
S

h
ie

ld
o

f 
T

ex
a

s

36



N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
F

IT
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 A

do
pt

ed
 fo

r 
H

ea
lth

 Im
pa

ct
 A

cr
os

s 
Te

xa
s

52
7 

Fi
tn

es
s 

C
ou

rt
s®

 
co

m
in

g 
by

 2
03

0!

$1
,0

00
,0

00
 in

 F
un

di
ng

 
N

ow
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

Q
ua

lifi
ed

 S
ite

 P
ar

tn
er

s 

TE
X

A
S 

ST
AT

E 
SP

O
N

SO
R

37



N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
F

IT
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

N
FC

 G
RA

N
T 

RE
Q

U
IR

EM
EN

TS

IS
 W

EL
LN

ES
S 

A
 

PR
IO

R
IT

Y?
SI

TE
 

W
IT

H
 IM

PA
C

T
FU

N
D

IN
G

M
AT

C
H

C
A

M
PA

IG
N

 
TI

M
IN

G

N
FC

 G
R

A
N

T 
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

ST
EP

 1
ST

EP
 3

ST
EP

 2
ST

EP
 4

38



PARKS
& 

RE
CR

EA
TION

STA
KE

H
O

LD
ER

S

COUNCI
L

M
EM

BERS

MAYOR
&

C
IT

Y
M

ANAGER

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
F

IT
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

W
EL

LN
ES

S 
A

S 
A

 P
RI

O
RI

TY

H
EA

LT
H

Y 
LI

V
IN

G
BU

IL
D 

A 
FR

EE
 O

U
TD

O
O

R 
GY

M
 W

IT
H

IN
A 

10
 M

IN
UT

E 
BI

KE
 R

ID
E 

O
F 

EV
ER

Y 
AM

ER
IC

AN

O
U

R 
M

IS
SI

O
N

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
FI

T
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

C
AM

PA
IG

N
 M

IS
SI

O
N

Ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 H

ea
lth

y 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

®
S

TE
P

 1

39



D
es

ig
n 

&
 P

la
nn

in
g 

C
on

su
lt

in
g

Si
te

 s
el

ec
tio

n 
w

or
ks

ho
p

SI
TE

 M
A

P 
- C

IR
C

U
LA

TI
O

N
 O

PP
O

RT
U

N
IT

IE
S

SW
 L

O
C

AT
IO

N
 

N
W

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

 
N

W
 L

O
C

AT
IO

N
 - 

SI
M

PL
E 

PA
TH

La
gu

na
 B

ea
ch

, C
A

C
irc

ul
at

io
n 

Pl
an

ni
ng

Si
te

 P
la

n 
In

te
gr

at
io

n

Pe
de

st
ria

n 
M

ov
em

en
t

An
al

ys
is

Ph
as

e 
Pl

an
 &

 M
ul

ti-
Si

te
 M

ap
pi

ng

1 32V
IS

IB
LE

Si
te

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 m
us

t b
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ab
le

 w
ith

 h
ig

h 
vi

si
bi

lit
y.

C
O

N
N

EC
TE

D
Si

te
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 m

us
t 

be
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 w
ith

 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
 

A
C

TI
V

E
Si

te
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 m

us
t b

e 
he

av
ily

 tr
affi

ck
ed

 a
nd

 
ce

nt
ra

lly
 lo

ca
te

d.

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
F

IT
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

SI
TE

 S
EL

EC
TI

O
N

S
TE

P
 2

40



A
rt

 O
pt

io
ns

St
at

e 
Sp

on
so

r A
rt 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n

In
cl

ud
ed

Lo
ca

l A
rti

st
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n
$2

5,
00

0

O
PT

IO
N

A
L

TO
TA

L 
FU

N
D

IN
G

 
RE

Q
U

IR
EM

EN
T

20
22

 C
A

M
PA

IG
N

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

T

N
FC

 P
RO

G
R

A
M

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

Th
e 

Fi
tn

es
s 

C
ou

rt
® 

an
d 

N
at

io
na

l C
am

pa
ig

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$

14
2,

35
0

N
FC

 - 
B

LU
E 

C
RO

SS
 B

LU
E 

SH
IE

LD
 O

F 
TE

X
A

S 
20

22
 G

R
A

N
T 

AW
A

RD
$5

0,
00

0

N
FC

 P
RO

G
R

A
M

 T
O

TA
L 

W
IT

H
 $

50
,0

00
 G

R
A

N
T 

AW
A

RD
$ 

92
,3

50

C
O

N
C

RE
TE

 S
LA

B
C

an
 b

e 
pe

rfo
rm

ed
 in

-h
ou

se
 o

r i
n-

ki
nd

0
-2

0,
00

0
es

t. $

EI
S 

IN
ST

A
LL

AT
IO

N
Tu

rn
 K

ey
 F

itn
es

s 
C

ou
rt

 A
ss

em
bl

y
A

rt
 &

 G
ra

ph
ic

 In
st

al
la

tio
n

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

Pa
rt

ne
r (

se
pa

ra
te

 c
on

tra
ct

)
W

ith
 P

re
va

iin
g 

W
ag

e 
Ra

te
s:

 $
27

,0
00

$
25

,0
00

$1
17

,3
50

-
$1

37
,3

50
In

cl
ud

es
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

ar
t c

ol
le

ct
io

n

41



N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
FI

T
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

FU
N

D
IN

G
 &

 S
PO

N
SO

R 
SU

PP
O

RT
O

VE
R 

10
00

+ 
SP

O
N

SO
RS

 N
AT

IO
N

W
ID

E

Fu
nd

in
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 &
 S

up
po

rt
Ex

pe
rt 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
ns

en
su

s 
an

d 
be

st
 

pr
ac

tic
es

 fo
r s

ec
ur

in
g 

m
at

ch
in

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 F

ed
er

al
, 

St
at

e,
 L

oc
al

 a
nd

 P
riv

at
e 

so
ur

ce
s.

SP
O

N
SO

RS
 N

AT
IO

N
W

ID
E

O
V

ER
10
00

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
FI

T
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

FU
N

D
IN

G
 &

 S
PO

N
SO

R 
SU

PP
O

RT
O

VE
R 

10
00

+ 
SP

O
N

SO
RS

 N
AT

IO
N

W
ID

E

Fu
nd

in
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 &
 S

up
po

rt
Ex

pe
rt 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
ns

en
su

s 
an

d 
be

st
 

pr
ac

tic
es

 fo
r s

ec
ur

in
g 

m
at

ch
in

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 F

ed
er

al
, 

St
at

e,
 L

oc
al

 a
nd

 P
riv

at
e 

so
ur

ce
s.

SP
O

N
SO

RS
 N

AT
IO

N
W

ID
E

O
V

ER
10
00N

A
T

IO
N

A
L 

FI
T

N
E

S
S

 C
A

M
PA

IG
N

FU
N

D
IN

G
 &

 S
PO

N
SO

R 
SU

PP
O

RT
O

VE
R 

10
00

+ 
SP

O
N

SO
RS

 N
AT

IO
N

W
ID

E

Fu
nd

in
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 &
 S

up
po

rt
Ex

pe
rt 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
ns

en
su

s 
an

d 
be

st
 

pr
ac

tic
es

 fo
r s

ec
ur

in
g 

m
at

ch
in

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 F

ed
er

al
, 

St
at

e,
 L

oc
al

 a
nd

 P
riv

at
e 

so
ur

ce
s.

SP
O

N
SO

RS
 N

AT
IO

N
W

ID
E

O
V

ER
10
00

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
FI

T
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

FU
N

D
IN

G
 &

 S
PO

N
SO

R 
SU

PP
O

RT
O

VE
R 

10
00

+ 
SP

O
N

SO
RS

 N
AT

IO
N

W
ID

E

Fu
nd

in
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 &
 S

up
po

rt
Ex

pe
rt 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
ns

en
su

s 
an

d 
be

st
 

pr
ac

tic
es

 fo
r s

ec
ur

in
g 

m
at

ch
in

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 F

ed
er

al
, 

St
at

e,
 L

oc
al

 a
nd

 P
riv

at
e 

so
ur

ce
s.

SP
O

N
SO

RS
 N

AT
IO

N
W

ID
E

O
V

ER
10
00

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
FI

T
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

FU
N

D
IN

G
 &

 S
PO

N
SO

R 
SU

PP
O

RT
O

VE
R 

10
00

+ 
SP

O
N

SO
RS

 N
AT

IO
N

W
ID

E

Fu
nd

in
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 &
 S

up
po

rt
Ex

pe
rt 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
ns

en
su

s 
an

d 
be

st
 

pr
ac

tic
es

 fo
r s

ec
ur

in
g 

m
at

ch
in

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 F

ed
er

al
, 

St
at

e,
 L

oc
al

 a
nd

 P
riv

at
e 

so
ur

ce
s.

SP
O

N
SO

RS
 N

AT
IO

N
W

ID
E

O
V

ER
10
00N

A
T

IO
N

A
L 

FI
T

N
E

S
S

 C
A

M
PA

IG
N

FU
N

D
IN

G
 &

 S
PO

N
SO

R 
SU

PP
O

RT
O

VE
R 

10
00

+ 
SP

O
N

SO
RS

 N
AT

IO
N

W
ID

E

Fu
nd

in
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 &
 S

up
po

rt
Ex

pe
rt 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
ns

en
su

s 
an

d 
be

st
 

pr
ac

tic
es

 fo
r s

ec
ur

in
g 

m
at

ch
in

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 F

ed
er

al
, 

St
at

e,
 L

oc
al

 a
nd

 P
riv

at
e 

so
ur

ce
s.

SP
O

N
SO

RS
 N

AT
IO

N
W

ID
E

O
V

ER
10
00

LO
C

A
L 

A
N

D
 R

EG
IO

N
A

L 
SP

O
N

SO
R

S
FE

D
ER

A
L 

A
N

D
 S

TA
TE

 
FU

N
D

IN
G

Ex
pe

rt 
fu

nd
in

g 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

fo
r e

lig
ib

le
 p

ar
tn

er
s

A
LT

ER
N

AT
E 

FU
N

D
IN

G
 P

AT
H

W
AY

S

FE
D

ER
A

L

ST
AT

E
LO

C
A

L

42



C
am

pa
ig

n 
se

ek
in

g 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 a

pp
lic

an
ts

 
ab

le
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 2
02

2 
tim

ef
ra

m
e 

fo
r 

ad
op

tio
n 

an
d 

lo
ca

l f
un

di
ng

 m
at

ch
. 

C
A

M
PA

IG
N

 T
IM

IN
G

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
F

IT
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

S
TE

P
 4

20
22

 G
R

A
N

T 
A

PP
LI

C
AT

IO
N

 
PE

R
IO

D
 N

O
W

 O
PE

N

43



PR
E 

A
PP

LI
C

AT
IO

N
 

PH
A

SE

A
W

A
R

D
 P

H
A

SE

LA
U

N
C

H
 P

H
A

SE

1 
Fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 R
ev

ie
w

2 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

C
al

l 
3 

N
on

-B
in

di
ng

 G
ra

nt
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n

4 
A

w
ar

d 
of

 G
ra

nt
 E

lig
ib

ili
ty

 (F
irs

t C
om

e,
 F

irs
t S

er
ve

d)
 

5 
Lo

ca
l A

do
pt

io
n 

by
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
od

y
6 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 C
on

fir
m

 F
un

di
ng

 M
at

ch

7 
Sh

ip
m

en
t f

or
 S

to
ra

ge
8 

In
st

al
l C

on
cr

et
e 

Sl
ab

 a
nd

 A
rt

 A
pp

ro
va

l 
9 

Fi
tn

es
s 

C
ou

rt
 A

ss
em

bl
y 

10
 P

re
ss

 L
au

nc
h 

C
er

em
on

y 

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
F

IT
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

PA
RT

N
ER

SH
IP

 Q
U

A
LI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
 P

RO
C

ES
S

44



N
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
F

IT
N

E
S

S
 C

A
M

PA
IG

N

IS
 W

EL
LN

ES
S 

A
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

?
SI

TE
 

W
IT

H
 IM

PA
C

T
FU

N
D

IN
G

M
A

TC
H

C
A

M
PA

IG
N

 
TI

M
IN

G

SC
H

ED
U

LE
 

EV
A

LU
AT

IO
N

 
C

A
LL

 IF
 

A
PP

R
O

PR
IA

TE

Q
&

A
D

IS
C

U
SS

IO
N

 - 
Q

&
A

ST
EP

 1
ST

EP
 3

ST
EP

 2
ST

EP
 4

N
EX

T 
ST

EP

45



9D

46



Marco A. Arredondo, Inc. 
Professional Utility Rate & Energy Consulting 

610 Colonial Drive • Portland, Texas 78374 • (361) 777-1335 • Fax: (866) 518-5687• E-mail: maa@arredondoinc.com 

April 23, 2022 

Mr. Albert Perez 

City Manager 

City of Mercedes 

400 S. Ohio Ave. 

Mercedes, TX  78570 

Reference:   RFQ# 2021-11-30 “Energy Consultant / Representative Services” 

Mr. Perez: 

Marco A. Arredondo, Inc. is a professional engineering energy firm that is in the business of working with our 

clients to manage their energy costs.  Marco A. Arredondo, Inc. is pleased to provide you with this proposal to 

provide energy services and quotes for your upcoming energy contract renewal.  Our firm works with several 

Retail Electric Providers to obtain the lowest possible energy quotes and contracts.  

Marco A. Arredondo, Inc. is aware that the City of Mercedes energy contract will expire in the future.  The firm 

will create an excel spreadsheet that accurately depicts the cost per kwh for the energy that the City of Mercedes 

is currently paying to monitor and track the cost reductions and savings. 

Marco A. Arredondo, Inc. will work with the staff of the City of Mercedes in accordance with RFQ# 2021-11-

30 “Energy Consultant / Representative Services” to create an RFP to obtain energy quotes along with an 

excel spreadsheet to accurately depict and monitor the annual cost of energy per account.  The firm will be paid 

a $0.004 (4 mil) fee per kwh that would be paid by the selected Retail Electric Provider after the present contract 

expiration on a monthly basis for the length of the renewal contract.  The same fee could also be applied for any 

additional terms if the contract was extended.  The fee would include all the services requested in the RFQ# 

2021-11-30 “Energy Consultant / Representative Services” along with some additional services as shown on 

the attached “Exhibit A” dated 4-23-2022. 

Fee would be paid by the selected Retail Electric Provider after the contract is awarded and the accounts are 

switched to the selected provider.  Marco A. Arredondo, Inc. is a registered aggregator in Texas and does 

not have any affiliations with Retail Electric Providers or engage in the sale of energy.  As a registered 

professional engineering firm in the State of Texas, we are ethically bound to provide the best possible 

contract at the lowest price to the City without bias.  We are a minority family-owned firm and appreciate the 

opportunity of doing business with the City of Mercedes.  If this agreement meets with your approval, please 

indicate by signing below. 

Company:  City of Mercedes 

Sincerely, 

Accepted:  _____________________________ 

         Authorized Representative 

Marco A. Arredondo, P.E.        Title:  ______________________________        

President 

       Date:  __________________ 

Item 10A

47



Marco A. Arredondo, Inc. 
Professional Utility Rate & Energy Consulting 

610 Colonial Drive • Portland, Texas 78374 • (361) 777-1335 • Fax: (866) 518-5687• E-mail: maa@arredondoinc.com 

EXHIBIT A 

4-23-2022

1. Input current electric bills on a customized excel spreadsheet to accurately depict the cost

per kwh:  Utilize data to compare current energy cost to quote comparisons.

2. Assist City in the creation of RFP to obtain energy quotes from Retail Electric Providers.

3. Negotiate and review energy quotes from Retail Electric Providers:  Provide an analysis

and comparison of terms, prices, products, and contract business terms from the Retail Electric

Providers.  Work with City Attorney to negotiate favorable contract.

4. Make Presentation and recommendation to City Staff and Commissioners:  Present

recommended retail electric provider contract, term, and savings to City staff.  We will also be

prepared to make any presentations to the City Council as necessary during the term of the

contract.

5. Create customized excel spreadsheet to track facility energy usage by meter and cost

center: This task will be the first step in tracking energy usage by meter and building location.

Further energy reduction and monitoring may be accomplished through smart metering

technology or by doing a load study on each building service entrance. The load data would

help identify the use of power on a per building basis and help in the reduction of energy usage

by identifying inefficient equipment. A smart metering device is an advanced electrical meter

that identifies detail electrical consumption better than conventional electrical meters.  As data

is collected by the system, it communicates the information to a remote computer where an

operator can store this information and use it later to track and monitor energy consumption

patterns.  By tracking building loads, the technology can be used to help conserve electrical

energy.

6. Providing monthly electric utility bill audit analysis and yearly budget reports starting in

2022: The firm has created a system of spread sheets to input billing information to check for

billing errors and keep a track of the energy usage being consumed by each meter compared to

the previous year as well as the cost of the energy.  This information will help us identify where

our major energy is being consumed and develop a strategy to reduce usage.  The energy usage

and consumption spreadsheet would be disseminated to individuals responsible for energy

usage in each of the metered sites to create an awareness of energy usage, cost, and reduction

plans. Presentations will be made to the City Council as requested.

7. Provide assistance for meter deletions and additions to the energy contract:  Obtain,

negotiate, and review all contractual paperwork for the addition of meters for new facilities or

the deletion of any existing facilities.

48



Marco A. Arredondo, Inc. 
Professional Utility Rate & Energy Consulting 

610 Colonial Drive • Portland, Texas 78374 • (361) 777-1335 • Fax: (866) 518-5687• E-mail: maa@arredondoinc.com 

EXHIBIT A 

4-23-2022

8. Dispute and provide support for bill error credits and corrections on behalf of the City:

Our firm would be responsible for insuring that electrical billing is correct. The firm would be

responsible for checking bills for errors and request credit when an error or discrepancy exists

by the electrical company. The firm would be responsible for handling all the information

required by the Retail Electric Provider for billing correction.

9. Provide engineering support for energy cost rebates and reductions of new and existing

facilities: Our firm would help the City identify AEP Rebate Programs to help pay for

infrastructure projects designed to save energy.  For example, if the City were to purchase a

new 800 ton chiller that can improve the chiller efficiency by 0.25 kW/ton, as opposed to

existing 400 ton chillers that operate at .75 kW/Ton. His company would contact AEP and

request a rebate check for implementing a new system to improve the efficiency by 0.25 kW

per ton or about 200 kw in total demand reduction. The rebate check would amount to (200

kW/ton at $150/ton) about $30,000 year.  The energy demand savings per month would be

about 200 kw * $8.74 = $1,747 or $21,000 per year.

10. Provide an energy reduction plan to meet compliance with Senate Bill 12 and HB 3693:

Even though the energy reduction mandate is no longer required by the State, the City should

implement a basic plan to help save 5 % per year. The firm would help the City establish a

minimum procedure to save energy by implementing a program to replace all T12 lighting with

T8, T5, or LED lighting where appropriate. The firm would also review existing illumination

and develop a plan for proper illumination.  The firm would work with the City to ensure that

proper illumination is delivered by the vendor on lighting projects.  Another phase of the plan

would be to set minimum requirements for motor equipment replacement efficiencies.

11. Provide engineering support for the renovation or expansion of existing or future

buildings:  By using the Master Plan concept, the firm plans on surveying buildings to

reevaluate the building electrical meters and determine how we can combine them to reduce the

amount of transformers and meters. The City may be able to reduce the AEP power equipment

it is currently leasing to reduce energy expenses.  For example, one AEP transformer may be

able to provide the service to more than one building or for new buildings.

12. Provide engineering support for power quality issues and corrections: The firm will review

the current proposals and information given to the City to reduce or eliminate power quality

issues.  However, the firm may conduct more studies to evaluate other solutions that may be

more cost effective.

13. Identify building meter and service entrance locations along with load info when possible:

The firm will measure or obtain the square footage of each building.  The firm will also identify

and locate meters so they can be readily identified on a Google Earth GPS database map.  This

information will be used to track energy consumption by square foot where applicable.

49



Marco A. Arredondo, Inc. 
Professional Utility Rate & Energy Consulting 

610 Colonial Drive • Portland, Texas 78374 • (361) 777-1335 • Fax: (866) 518-5687• E-mail: maa@arredondoinc.com 

EXHIBIT A 

4-23-2022

14. Provide engineering support to minimize demand costs by utilizing Thermal Energy

Storage System if applicable:  The firm will review the demand usage graph of the Thermal

Energy Storage Systems by observing a 12-month period. The firm will determine the

maximum usage on the high demand day for each month. The objective is to determine when

the highest demand on the Thermal Storage System occurs among other areas. The goal is to

lower the peak energy demand by distributing the load over a 24-hour demand period. This

process is called “load leveling.”  The object is to “shave” the highest demand of the day by

lowering the chiller usage during the hottest parts of the day and storing the cooling energy

during the night when cooling requirements are at a minimum.  This strategy would help the

City use the energy demand evenly across the day much like turning on a battery with stored

energy.

15. Provide engineering support to possibly participate in demand response program: The

firm will evaluate and make recommendations where appropriate to purchase emergency

generators to provide power to the critical loads such as computer systems during electrical

outages.  The City would then be able to participate in the ERCOT Demand Response program

which could pay the as much as $50,000 per 1000kw by using an emergency generator during

potential power curtailments on the electric grid.

16. Provide Engineering support to reduce demand by meter consolidation where applicable:

The City may have locations where meter consolidation may be possible.  Our meter audit will

uncover any opportunities.  The meter audit will also help us ensure that every meter is on the

correct tariff rate from AEP.

17. Provide engineering support to correct power factor where applicable and cost effective:

We will investigate any locations where a capacitor bank could be installed to reduce any

penalties being incurred.

18. Provide timely 4CP notifications during the summer months:  We monitor the grid during

the summer months along with REP’s to predict potential 4CP events.  We routinely email out

potential 4CP notifications in the morning and then send out the Action 4CP notifications in the

afternoon to all of our major clients.  This may amount to about 20 notifications during the

summer because it is nearly impossible to predict when the actual 4CP peak for the month will

occur.  This may amount to about 20 notifications during the summer because it is nearly

impossible to predict when the actual 4CP peak for the month will summer because it is nearly

impossible to predict when the actual 4CP peak for the month will occur.  This action has

resulted in thousands of dollars being saved on 4CP transmission demand ratchet charges to our

clients.

50



10B

51



52



53



10C

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



11A

105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



Memo 
To: Alberto Perez, City Manager  

From: Marisol Vidales, Library Director 

CC: Javier Ramirez, Assistant City Manager 

Date: June 8, 2022 

Re: Library Department Monthly Report  

Attached you will find the Library Department’s monthly statistical report, please let me know 
if you have any questions regarding the information. Also, Library Staff participated in the 
following meetings, trainings, and events during the month of May 2022. 

Meetings 

• Summer Reading Program & Emergency Connectivity Funds Meeting (5/2) – Marisol
Vidales

• Beanstack Demo (5/3) – Michelle Muniz

• City Commission Meeting (5/3) – Marisol Vidales

• Department Head Meeting (5/4) – Marisol Vidales

• Presentation to Literacy Minnesota regarding Digital Navigator classes (5/4) –
Anthony Cardenas, Tristan Garza, and Michelle Muniz

• Event planning meeting with Dr. Samuel Garcia for Dr. Rolando Hinojosa – Smith
Tribute (5/6) – Marisol Vidales and Michelle Muniz

• Digital Navigator Cohort Meeting (5/6) – Tristan Garza and Anthony Cardenas

• Nestle/Starbucks Compliance and Update Meeting (5/11) – Michelle Muniz

• Harper Collins Booklist Fall 2022 Preview Webinar (5/12) – Michelle Muniz

• Patron Point Demo (5/13) – Michelle Muniz

• Adept Facilities & Design Proposal Meeting for water issues (5/16) – Marisol Vidales

• STX Electrical Proposal Meeting for Christmas Decor (5/17) – Marisol Vidales and
Michelle Muniz

• City Commission Meeting (5/17) – Marisol Vidales

• Department Head Meeting (5/18) – Marisol Vidales

• Pay Scale Meeting (5/18) – Marisol Vidales

• Michigan State University Grant Meeting (5/18) – Marisol Vidales, Michelle Muniz,
Daniela Alejo, and Mary Jane Hernandez

• National Digital Inclusion Alliance Meeting (5/19) – Anthony Cardenas and Tristan
Garza

114



⚫ Page 2 

 

 
Trainings 

• FY 2022 ILL Lending Reimbursement Program Overview (5/3) – Maria Isabel 
Mendoza 

• Hurricane Preparedness (5/17) – Marisol Vidales 

• 12th Annual Rio Grande Valley Emergency Management Partners Hurricane 
Workshop (5/25) – Marisol Vidales  

• Libraries Connecting Texas Webinar (5/26) – Michelle Muniz 

• Stop the Bleed Training (5/27) – Marisol Vidales, Mary Jane Hernandez, Maria Isabel 
Mendoza, Frank Rivas, Daniela Alejo, Janie Palacios, Tristan Garza, and Flora 
Ramirez.  

 
   
Outreach  

• Ruben Hinojosa Elementary Appreciation Day (5/4) – Frank Rivas  
Toddlers: 53  Children: 121  Adults: 2 

• Taylor Elementary Field Trip (5/20) – Frank Rivas and Daniela Alejo 
Children: 73  Adults: 12 

• Mercedes Recreation Center (5/20) – Frank Rivas and Daniela Alejo 
Children: 43  Adults: 3 

• Mercedes Independent School District Parental Program (5/31) – Frank Rivas 
Children: 3  Adults: 14 
 

 
 

Events 
 

The regular children’s programming is both in-person and virtual. It is planned and completed 
by Children’s Library Aide, Frank Rivas. 

• Toddler Time (5/3) – We had 16 virtual attendees 

• Story & Craft Time (5/3) – We had 43 virtual attendees 

• Toddler Time (5/17) – We had 1 child and 2 adults attend in-person 

• STEM Activity (5/5) – We had 22 virtual attendees 
Other Events 

• Texas A&M AgriLife Extension Nutrition Class (5/4) 
Adults:11 

• National Day of Prayer (5/5) – The event was attended by Marisol Vidales 

• Digital Navigator Computer Class (5/5) – The class curriculum is created and taught 
by Tristan Garza and Anthony Cardenas. 
Adults: 10 

• Food distribution (5/11) – The event was attended by Michelle Torres 

• Texas A&M AgriLife Extension Nutrition Class (5/11) 
Adults: 7 

• Digital Navigator Computer Class (5/12) – The class curriculum is created and taught 
by Tristan Garza and Anthony Cardenas. 
Adults:10 

• Texas A&M AgriLife Extension Nutrition Class (5/18) 
Adults:10 

115



⚫ Page 3

• Digital Navigator Computer Class (5/19) – The class curriculum is created and taught
by Tristan Garza and Anthony Cardenas
Adults: 7

• K-Pop Night (5/19) – This event was prepared by and hosted by Michelle Muniz
Teens: 9

• Texas A&M AgriLife Extension Nutrition Class (5/25)
Adults:5

• Digital Navigator Computer Class (5/26) – The class curriculum is created and taught
by Tristan Garza and Anthony Cardenas
Adults: 9

• Book Club (5/26) – This event is prepared and hosted by Michelle Muniz and Marisol
Vidales
Adults: 5

Other Projects/Duties 

Café 

• We sold 655 individual items for the 21 days that we were open and we made
$2,304.32 in sales.

Marketing (The majority of these items involve the creation of flyers, taking and posting 
photos, filming and editing videos, responding to after hour text messages from department 
heads, responding to citizens via direct message, and interacting with the public on social 
media platforms.) 

• Created 4 newsletters for April for New Releases for Books, New Releases for
Media, Gallery 434, and Library & Café News.

• Created a total of 63 flyers for the month of April for the library, café, city & HCLS.

• Created 3 book rivers on TLC Catalog to honor monthly observances highlighting
our collection.

• Created 5 shelves in cloudLibrary in honor of monthly observances highlighting our
collection.

• Created 3 book displays for the month of May – 2 for the adult area and 1 for the
Children’s section.

• Posted 264 items across Facebook, Instagram, and Twitter for the Library, Café,
HCLS, and City and responded to 5 Direct Messages.

Administration/Collection Management/Development 

• Submitted final report for the Texas Book Festival Grant.

• Submitted the application for the Emergency Connectivity Fund for 75 hot spots
through USAC/E-rate and have been responding to Program Integrity Assurance
questions as received.

• Filed Form 486 for Category 1 funding in E-Rate after award letter was received.

• Reviewed café sales, waste, and inventory to recalculating baking quantities and
instructed staff on new baking procedures.

116



⚫ Page 4 

 

• Reviewed the inventory list for Urban County and took photos of all the items and 
barcodes, corrected errors in inventory, and let representative know which items still 
need to be tagged and submitted final report. 

• Reviewed the budget for the Digital Navigator Grant and submitted a budget 
change request through GMS portal. 

• Prepared and submitted 2022-2023 library budget worksheet based on quotations, 
current balance, projected programs, etc. as well as prepared a budget for the 
2022-2023 community events budget. 

• Worked with Finance Department to review open purchase orders and determine 
which could be closed or had pending shipments to establish a more actual budget.  

• Submitted all the purchase orders for Summer Reading Program presenters and 
purchased all the prizes for patrons participating in the reading challenge. 

• Installed art work for multiple exhibits for Gallery 434 which included Commissioner 
Jacob Howell & local teen artists. 

• Senior Cataloger assisted both Penitas and Elsa library with their batch upload 
project to OCLC. 

• Senior Cataloger continued to delete patrons that no longer have an active card but 
were mistakenly not purged by TLC. 

 
 
 

 

117



M
ay

-2
2

Ci
rc

ul
at

io
n

20
22

20
21

Bo
ok

 &
 M

ed
ia

 D
on

at
io

ns
20

22
20

21
Co

m
pu

te
r S

es
si

on
s

20
22

20
21

Ch
ec

k-
O

ut
s &

 R
en

ew
al

s:
58

7
22

5
Do

na
tio

ns
 R

ec
ei

ve
d:

0
0

Ad
ul

t L
ab

 S
es

sio
ns

:
42

9
23

9
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

4,
78

0
57

57
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

41
6

59
2

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
2,

88
7

45
9

In
-H

ou
se

 B
oo

k 
Ci

rc
ul

at
io

n:
13

7
14

Do
na

tio
ns

 S
el

ec
te

d:
0

0
Ju

ve
ni

le
 L

ab
 S

es
sio

ns
:

23
38

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
92

7
12

5
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

70
11

3
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

13
8

63
In

-H
ou

se
 M

ag
az

in
e 

Ci
rc

ul
at

io
n:

33
10

W
iF

i:
3,

22
9

10
34

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
19

0
80

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
24

,0
36

84
35

In
-H

ou
se

 N
ew

sp
ap

er
 C

irc
ul

at
io

n:
78

30
Re

fe
re

nc
e 

As
si

st
an

ce
20

22
20

21
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

36
0

51
By

 P
ho

ne
:

12
0

12
7

N
ew

 B
or

ro
w

er
s:

21
8

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
85

3
24

42
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

14
1

61
In

-P
er

so
n:

11
6

70
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

74
2

72
1

M
ee

tin
g 

Ro
om

 S
es

si
on

s
20

22
20

21
Se

ss
io

ns
:

35
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
20

4
2

Di
gi

ta
l R

es
ou

rc
es

20
22

20
21

Re
fe

re
nc

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
20

22
20

21
cl

ou
dL

ib
ra

ry
 C

he
ck

ou
ts

:
74

81
0

Di
re

ct
io

na
l/B

as
ic

 Q
ue

st
io

ns
:

83
84

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l: 
56

31
6

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

52
4

16
47

N
ew

sS
ta

nd
 C

he
ck

ou
ts

: 
29

8
0

Re
se

ar
ch

 Q
ue

st
io

ns
:

29
33

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s
20

22
20

21
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l: 

17
41

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

23
6

34
4

N
ew

 It
em

s A
dd

ed
:

79
16

8
Co

m
pu

te
r Q

ue
st

io
ns

:
30

32
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

63
5

57
8

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
27

8
49

Ite
m

s P
ro

ce
ss

ed
:

31
65

Fa
x 

As
sis

ta
nc

e:
76

42
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

46
5

47
2

In
te

rli
br

ar
y 

Lo
an

s (
IL

L'
s)

20
22

20
21

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
45

2
91

Ite
m

s W
ith

dr
aw

n:
0

2
Ite

m
s R

eq
ue

st
ed

:
58

51
Co

py
 A

ss
ist

an
ce

:
85

70
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

18
5

86
1

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
58

3
59

6
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

61
1

14
1

Ite
m

s R
ec

at
al

og
ed

:
35

0
Ite

m
s S

en
t:

30
24

Sc
an

 A
ss

ist
an

ce
:

14
6

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
55

2
19

05
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

29
5

28
4

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
84

10
Ite

m
s R

ep
ai

re
d:

19
4

Pr
in

t O
ut

s:
 

21
63

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

60
13

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
89

35
0

 D
r. 

H
ec

to
r P

. G
ar

ci
a 

M
em

or
ia

l L
ib

ra
ry

 S
ta

tis
tic

al
 R

ep
or

t

Pa
ge

 1

118



M
ay

-2
2

Ad
ul

t P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
20

22
20

21
To

dd
le

r P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
20

22
20

21
O

ut
re

ac
h 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
20

22
20

21
Ad

ul
t E

ve
nt

s:
2

0
Ch

ild
re

n 
Ev

en
ts

:
2

0
Ev

en
ts

:
3

2
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

8
4

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
18

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

10
3

Ad
ul

ts
 in

 A
tt

en
da

nc
e:

19
0

Ch
ild

re
n 

in
 A

tt
en

da
nc

e:
1

0
To

dd
le

rs
 in

 A
tt

en
da

nc
e:

53
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
93

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

10
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
83

0
Li

ve
 V

ie
w

s:
0

0
Ad

ul
ts

 in
 A

tt
en

da
nc

e:
2

0
Ch

ild
re

n 
in

 A
tt

en
da

nc
e:

16
7

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

1
13

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
6

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

33
5

0
Re

co
rd

ed
 C

ou
nt

s:
0

0
Li

ve
 V

ie
w

s:
12

0
Te

en
s i

n 
At

te
nd

an
ce

:
0

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

0
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
41

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

0
0

Re
co

rd
ed

 V
ie

w
s:

4
0

Ad
ul

ts
 in

 A
tt

en
da

nc
e:

19
20

Te
en

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
20

22
20

21
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

24
7

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

21
2

26
Te

en
 E

ve
nt

s:
1

0
Ge

ne
ra

l A
tt

en
da

nc
e:

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

16
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
13

Te
en

s i
n 

At
te

nd
an

ce
:

9
0

G
en

er
al

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
20

22
20

21
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

80
0

Ev
en

ts
:

1
0

Li
ve

 V
ie

w
s:

0
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
7

0
Re

ad
in

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
s

20
22

20
21

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
0

0
To

dd
le

rs
 in

 A
tt

en
da

nc
e:

0
0

To
dd

le
r R

ea
di

ng
 L

og
s:

0
0

Re
co

rd
ed

 C
ou

nt
s:

0
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
11

0
Ch

ild
re

n 
Re

ad
in

g 
Lo

gs
:

0
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
0

0
Ch

ild
re

n 
in

 A
tt

en
da

nc
e:

73
0

Te
en

 R
ea

di
ng

 L
og

s:
 

0
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
32

7
0

Ad
ul

t R
ea

di
ng

 L
og

s:
 

0
0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
20

22
20

21
Te

en
s i

n 
At

te
nd

an
ce

: 
0

0
To

ta
l: 

0
0

Ch
ild

re
n 

Ev
en

ts
:

2
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
23

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

31
0

Ad
ul

ts
 in

 A
tt

en
da

nc
e:

12
0

Ch
ild

re
n 

in
 A

tt
en

da
nc

e:
0

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

14
7

0
Vo

lu
nt

ee
r H

ou
rs

20
22

20
21

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
45

0
Li

ve
 V

ie
w

s:
0

0
To

ta
l:

80
.2

5
11

7
Ad

ul
ts

 in
 A

tt
en

da
nc

e:
0

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

0
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
15

77
.5

23
34

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
18

0
Re

co
rd

ed
 V

ie
w

s:
0

0
Li

ve
 V

ie
w

s:
14

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

0
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
62

0
Re

co
rd

ed
 V

ie
w

s:
51

11
7

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
64

4
23

34

 D
r. 

H
ec

to
r P

. G
ar

ci
a 

M
em

or
ia

l L
ib

ra
ry

 S
ta

tis
tic

al
 R

ep
or

t

Pa
ge

 2

119



M
ay

-2
2

Cu
rb

si
de

 S
er

vi
ce

s
20

22
20

21
So

ci
al

 M
ed

ia
20

22
20

21
Cu

rb
sid

e 
Ca

fé
: 

24
4

Ca
fé

 V
is

its
 

20
22

20
21

Li
br

ar
y 

Po
st

s:
22

4
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l: 
22

5
45

5
Vi

sit
s:

52
2

88
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

16
54

0
Cu

rb
sid

e 
Ci

rc
ul

at
io

n:
1

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

32
81

27
6

Li
br

ar
y 

DM
s:

4
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l: 
24

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

14
0

Cu
rb

sid
e 

Cr
af

ts
: 

0
0

Ca
fe

 P
os

ts
: 

33
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l: 
65

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l: 

24
1

0
Cu

rb
sid

e 
O

th
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s:
8

17
Ca

fé
 S

al
es

20
22

20
21

Ca
fé

 D
M

s:
 

1
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l: 
35

31
29

N
et

 S
al

es
:

2,
12

8.
61

$ 
   

15
35

.1
7

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l: 
2

0
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l:

15
,4

57
.9

2
$ 

 
79

92
.9

3
Ci

ty
 P

os
ts

:
6

0
Sa

le
s T

ax
:

17
5.

71
$ 

   
   

12
7.

13
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l: 

66
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
1,

25
9.

62
$ 

   
65

9.
94

Ci
ty

 D
M

s:
 

0
0

Li
br

ar
y 

Vi
si

ts
20

22
20

21
Ye

ar
 to

 D
at

e 
To

ta
l: 

22
0

Vi
sit

s:
2,

41
2

11
59

Vi
de

os
 C

re
at

ed
: 

0
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l:
15

,4
34

23
21

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l: 
10

0
W

eb
sit

e 
U

pd
at

es
:

11
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

To
ta

l: 
11

3
0

HC
LS

 P
os

ts
:

1
0

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e:

16
0

 D
r. 

H
ec

to
r P

. G
ar

ci
a 

M
em

or
ia

l L
ib

ra
ry

 S
ta

tis
tic

al
 R

ep
or

t

Pa
ge

 3

120



R
ec

vd
Pe

rio
d

St
at

e 
C

om
pt

ro
lle

r
ED

C
 (2

5%
)

O
ut

le
t M

al
l

M
th

 %
 

In
c/

D
ec

C
ity

 (7
5%

)
O

ut
le

t M
al

l
M

th
 %

 
In

c/
D

ec
St

at
e 

C
om

pt
ro

lle
r

ED
C

 (2
5%

)
O

ut
le

t M
al

l
M

th
 %

 
In

c/
D

ec
C

ity
 (7

5%
)

O
ut

le
t M

al
l

M
th

 %
 

In
c/

D
ec

O
ct

Au
g

36
0,

54
7.

72
 

86
,7

98
.2

8
 

3,
33

8.
65

 
12

.4
2%

26
0,

39
4.

83
 

10
,0

15
.9

6
 

12
.4

2%
53

2,
21

9.
32

 
12

6,
35

5.
59

 
6,

69
9.

24
 

-0
.4

7%
37

9,
06

6.
78

 
20

,0
97

.7
1

 
-0

.4
7%

N
ov

Se
pt

46
0,

05
1.

33
 

10
9,

95
7.

47
 

5,
05

5.
36

 
26

.6
8%

32
9,

87
2.

41
 

15
,1

66
.0

9
 

26
.6

8%
58

7,
65

2.
79

 
14

0,
87

1.
36

 
6,

04
1.

84
 

11
.4

9%
42

2,
61

4.
08

 
18

,1
25

.5
1

 
11

.4
9%

D
ec

O
ct

41
5,

58
7.

16
 

99
,5

92
.2

4
 

4,
30

4.
55

 
-9

.4
3%

29
8,

77
6.

72
 

12
,9

13
.6

5
 

-9
.4

3%
43

7,
73

4.
09

 
86

,0
28

.3
8

 
23

,4
05

.1
4

 
-3

8.
93

%
25

8,
08

5.
14

 
70

,2
15

.4
3

 
-3

8.
93

%
Ja

n
N

ov
49

5,
38

4.
03

 
11

8,
12

2.
77

 
5,

72
3.

24
 

18
.6

1%
35

4,
36

8.
31

 
17

,1
69

.7
1

 
18

.6
1%

69
7,

91
8.

59
 

12
4,

01
4.

84
 

50
,4

64
.8

1
 

44
.1

6%
37

2,
04

4.
51

 
15

1,
39

4.
43

 
44

.1
6%

Fe
b

D
ec

71
3,

33
7.

55
 

16
8,

64
6.

44
 

9,
68

7.
95

 
42

.7
7%

50
5,

93
9.

32
 

29
,0

63
.8

4
 

42
.7

7%
1,

03
8,

31
4.

60
 

17
1,

13
2.

45
 

88
,4

46
.2

0
 

37
.9

9%
51

3,
39

7.
35

 
26

5,
33

8.
60

 
37

.9
9%

M
ar

Ja
n

41
0,

15
2.

48
 

98
,7

52
.3

2
 

3,
78

5.
80

 
-4

1.
44

%
29

6,
25

6.
95

 
11

,3
57

.4
1

 
-4

1.
44

%
52

0,
94

0.
96

 
10

0,
11

5.
16

 
30

,1
20

.0
8

 
-4

1.
50

%
30

0,
34

5.
47

 
90

,3
60

.2
5

 
-4

1.
50

%
Ap

r
Fe

b
39

1,
84

3.
83

 
94

,6
41

.2
6

 
3,

31
9.

70
 

-4
.1

6%
28

3,
92

3.
77

 
9,

95
9.

10
 

-4
.1

6%
52

1,
26

2.
12

 
98

,1
45

.0
9

 
32

,1
70

.4
4

 
-1

.9
7%

29
4,

43
5.

29
 

96
,5

11
.3

0
 

-1
.9

7%
M

ay
M

ar
70

2,
97

5.
27

 
16

6,
63

7.
28

 
9,

10
6.

54
 

76
.0

7%
49

9,
91

1.
84

 
27

,3
19

.6
1

 
76

.0
7%

73
6,

96
3.

37
 

14
0,

54
2.

60
 

43
,6

98
.2

4
 

43
.2

0%
42

1,
62

7.
80

 
13

1,
09

4.
73

 
43

.2
0%

Ju
n

Ap
r

55
0,

28
2.

65
 

13
0,

90
1.

65
 

6,
66

9.
01

 
-2

1.
45

%
39

2,
70

4.
96

 
20

,0
07

.0
3

 
-2

1.
45

%
66

1,
16

8.
76

 
16

5,
29

2.
19

 
17

.6
1%

49
5,

87
6.

57
 

17
.6

1%
   

  4
,5

00
,1

62
.0

2 
   

  1
,0

74
,0

49
.7

1 
   

   
 5

0,
99

0.
80

 
2.

79
%

   
  3

,2
22

,1
49

.1
1 

   
 1

52
,9

72
.4

0 
2.

79
%

   
  5

,7
34

,1
74

.6
0 

   
  1

,1
52

,4
97

.6
6 

   
  2

81
,0

45
.9

9 
7.

30
%

   
  3

,4
57

,4
92

.9
9 

   
 8

43
,1

37
.9

6 
7.

30
%

N
ot

e:
 P

en
di

ng
 O

ut
le

t M
al

l R
ep

or
t f

or
 J

un
e 

fr
om

 T
x.

 C
om

pt
ro

lle
r.

BU
D

G
ET

4,
80

0,
00

0

20
20

-2
02

1
20

21
-2

02
2

Yr
 %

 In
c/

D
ec

20
20

-2
02

1
20

21
-2

02
2

Yr
 %

 In
c/

D
ec

%
 O

F 
BU

D
G

ET
39

.0
5%

O
ct

36
0,

54
7.

72
 

53
2,

21
9.

32
 

47
.6

1%
O

ct
26

0,
39

4.
83

 
37

9,
06

6.
78

 
45

.5
7%

N
ov

46
0,

05
1.

33
 

58
7,

65
2.

79
 

27
.7

4%
N

ov
32

9,
87

2.
41

 
42

2,
61

4.
08

 
28

.1
1%

D
ec

41
5,

58
7.

16
 

43
7,

73
4.

09
 

5.
33

%
D

ec
29

8,
77

6.
72

 
25

8,
08

5.
14

 
-1

3.
62

%
Ja

n
49

5,
38

4.
03

 
69

7,
91

8.
59

 
40

.8
8%

Ja
n

35
4,

36
8.

31
 

37
2,

04
4.

51
 

4.
99

%
Fe

b
71

3,
33

7.
55

 
1,

03
8,

31
4.

60
 

45
.5

6%
Fe

b
50

5,
93

9.
32

 
51

3,
39

7.
35

 
1.

47
%

M
ar

41
0,

15
2.

48
 

52
0,

94
0.

96
 

27
.0

1%
M

ar
29

6,
25

6.
95

 
30

0,
34

5.
47

 
1.

38
%

Ap
r

39
1,

84
3.

83
 

52
1,

26
2.

12
 

33
.0

3%
Ap

r
28

3,
92

3.
77

 
29

4,
43

5.
29

 
3.

70
%

M
ay

70
2,

97
5.

27
 

73
6,

96
3.

37
 

4.
83

%
M

ay
49

9,
91

1.
84

 
42

1,
62

7.
80

 
-1

5.
66

%
Ju

n
55

0,
28

2.
65

 
66

1,
16

8.
76

   
   

  
20

.1
5%

Ju
n

39
2,

70
4.

96
 

49
5,

87
6.

57
 

26
.2

7%
   

  4
,5

00
,1

62
.0

2 
   

  5
,7

34
,1

74
.6

0 
27

.4
2%

   
  3

,2
22

,1
49

.1
1 

   
  3

,4
57

,4
92

.9
9 

7.
30

%

R
ec

ei
ve

d
G

en
er

at
ed

O
ct

ob
er

Au
gu

st
N

ov
em

be
r

Se
pt

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

O
ct

ob
er

Ja
nu

ar
y

N
ov

em
be

r
Fe

br
ua

ry
D

ec
em

be
r

M
ar

ch
Ja

nu
ar

y
Ap

ril
Fe

br
ua

ry
M

ay
M

ar
ch

Ju
ne

Ap
ril

Ju
ly

M
ay

Au
gu

st
Ju

ne
Se

pt
em

be
r

Ju
ly

N
ot

e:
 R

ev
en

ue
 g

en
er

at
ed

 2
 m

on
th

s 
pr

io
r r

ec
ei

pt
.  

Ex
: G

en
er

at
ed

 in
 O

ct
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 D

ec

N
ot

e:
 M

th
 %

 In
c 

/D
ec

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 p
rio

r m
on

th
.

N
ot

e:
 Y

r %
 In

c 
/D

ec
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 p

rio
r y

ea
r.

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
M

ER
C

ED
ES

SA
LE

S 
TA

X 
C

O
M

PA
R

AT
IV

E 
AN

AL
YS

IS
B

Y 
M

O
N

TH
 R

EC
EI

VE
D

FY
 2

02
0-

20
21

FY
 2

02
1-

20
22

Ye
ar

ly
 T

ot
al

 S
al

es
 T

ax
 C

om
pa

ris
on

Ye
ar

ly
 C

ity
 S

al
es

 T
ax

 C
om

pa
ris

on

121



 -

 1
00

,0
00

.0
0

 2
00

,0
00

.0
0

 3
00

,0
00

.0
0

 4
00

,0
00

.0
0

 5
00

,0
00

.0
0

 6
00

,0
00

.0
0

 7
00

,0
00

.0
0

 8
00

,0
00

.0
0

 9
00

,0
00

.0
0

 1
,0

00
,0

00
.0

0

 1
,1

00
,0

00
.0

0

O
ct

N
ov

De
c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay

Ju
n

20
20

-2
02

1
36

0,
54

7.
72

46
0,

05
1.

33
41

5,
58

7.
16

49
5,

38
4.

03
71

3,
33

7.
55

41
0,

15
2.

48
39

1,
84

3.
83

70
2,

97
5.

27
55

0,
28

2.
65

20
21

-2
02

2
53

2,
21

9.
32

58
7,

65
2.

79
43

7,
73

4.
09

69
7,

91
8.

59
1,

03
8,

31
4.

60
52

0,
94

0.
96

52
1,

26
2.

12
73

6,
96

3.
37

66
1,

16
8.

76

To
ta

l S
al

es
 Ta

x 
Co

m
pa

ris
on

20
20

-2
02

1
20

21
-2

02
2

122



 -

 1
00

,0
00

.0
0

 2
00

,0
00

.0
0

 3
00

,0
00

.0
0

 4
00

,0
00

.0
0

 5
00

,0
00

.0
0

 6
00

,0
00

.0
0

O
ct

N
ov

De
c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay

Ju
n

20
20

-2
02

1
26

0,
39

4.
83

32
9,

87
2.

41
29

8,
77

6.
72

35
4,

36
8.

31
50

5,
93

9.
32

29
6,

25
6.

95
28

3,
92

3.
77

49
9,

91
1.

84
39

2,
70

4.
96

20
21

-2
02

2
37

9,
06

6.
78

42
2,

61
4.

08
25

8,
08

5.
14

37
2,

04
4.

51
51

3,
39

7.
35

30
0,

34
5.

47
29

4,
43

5.
29

42
1,

62
7.

80
49

5,
87

6.
57

Ci
ty

 S
al

es
 T

ax
 C

om
pa

ris
on

20
20

-2
02

1
20

21
-2

02
2

123



06-15-2022 12:25 AM                               C O U N C I L   R E P O R T                                   PAGE:     1

VENDOR NAME                              DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_

 

AGUAWORKS PIPE & SUPPLY, LLC            5/18/22 5/8"x3/4"2200 METERS       UTILITY FUND       METER READERS               15,600.00

                                        5/18/22 FLOWIQ2200 ALD METER       UTILITY FUND       METER READERS               15,600.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          31,200.00

 

BLUECROSS AND BLUE SHIELD OF TEXAS      5/04/22 MAY 2022 EMPLOYEE INSURANC GENERAL FUND       POLICE                      18,542.45_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          18,542.45

 

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION OF MERCEDES     5/27/22 MAY 2022 SALES TAX         GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL           184,240.83

                                        5/13/22 PAYMENT 47 MAY 2022        GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            10,416.67_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:         194,657.50

 

GEXA ENERGY, LP                         5/18/22 MARCH-APRIL 2022 ELECTRICI GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            15,022.38

                                        5/18/22 MARCH-APRIL 2022 ELECTRICI UTILITY FUND       WATER/SEWER TREATMENT       27,599.10_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          42,621.48

 

HIDALGO COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT       5/18/22 3898 2ND QUARTER-CITY ASSE GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            13,735.25_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          13,735.25

 

LAW OF OF MARTIE GARCIA VELA, PC.       5/02/22 MERCEDES007 LEGAL WORK     GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            14,020.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          14,020.00

 

SWG ENGINEERING, LLC                    5/20/22 10077 FEMA DOME DRAINAGE   AMERICAN RESCUE FU AMERICAN RESCUE FUND        43,590.00

                                        5/20/22 10075 CAPISALLO TERRACE SA SERIES 2021        SEWER/UTILITY IMPROVEM      47,145.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          90,735.00

 

TEXAS NATIONAL BANK                     5/16/22 FEDERAL W/H                GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            11,274.85

                                        5/31/22 FEDERAL W/H                GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            11,498.27

                                        5/16/22 FICA W/H                   GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            10,605.14

                                        5/31/22 FICA W/H                   GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            10,920.03_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          44,298.29

 

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES                      5/18/22 025-369311 ANNUAL FEES     GENERAL FUND       INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY      41,447.00

                                        5/18/22 025-369311 ANNUAL FEES     UTILITY FUND       INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY      16,968.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          58,415.00

 

U.S. WATER SERVICES CORPORATION         5/20/22 S147820 MONTHLY CONTRACT   UTILITY FUND       WATER/SEWER TREATMENT      161,018.36_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:         161,018.36

 

124



06-15-2022 12:25 AM C O U N C I L   R E P O R T PAGE: 2

VENDOR NAME DATE   DESCRIPTION FUND DEPARTMENT AMOUNT_

=============== FUND TOTALS ================

01   GENERAL FUND 341,722.87

02   UTILITY FUND 236,785.46

51   AMERICAN RESCUE FUND 43,590.00

52   SERIES 2021 47,145.00

--------------------------------------------

GRAND TOTAL:         669,243.33

--------------------------------------------

TOTAL PAGES:    2

125



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 05/31/2022

01 GENERAL FUND
Budget Completed 66.67%

YTD Budget % of 
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance Budget
Taxes 8,737,643     6,835,347     1,902,296 78.23%
Licenses & Permits 167,500        411,933        (244,433) 245.93%
Fines & Services 2,117,460     1,419,936     697,524 67.06%
Intergovernmental 18,100          2,741            15,359 15.14%
Miscellaneous 1,252,100     1,114,832     137,268 89.04%

12,292,803  9,784,789    2,508,014    79.60%

EXPENDITURES
Commission 30,700          15,870          14,830 51.70%
Exe. Adm 237,303        144,559        92,744 60.92%
Human Resources 90,011          16,428          73,583 18.25%
City Secretary 72,249          64,167          8,082 88.81%
Mun. Court 142,621        91,968          50,653 64.48%
Finance 214,350        131,199        83,151 61.21%
IT 261,789        146,180        115,609 55.84%
Planning 523,071        293,216        229,855 56.06%
Police 2,987,868     2,026,072     961,796 67.81%
Animal Control 84,540          27,074          57,466 32.02%
Fire 1,298,008     835,019        462,990 64.33%
PW 99,912          82,654          17,258 82.73%
Streets 574,501        405,328        169,173 70.55%
Build. Maint. 245,516        210,673        34,843 85.81%
Veh. Maint. 268,726        187,001        81,725 69.59%
Parks & Rec 497,148        257,725        239,423 51.84%
Rec. Center 44,122          23,598          20,524 53.48%
Library 411,087        254,361        156,726 61.88%
Projects -                 -                 0 #DIV/0!
Sanitation 1,430,081     859,755        570,326 60.12%
Dome Shelter 259,358        161,673        97,685 62.34%
Non-Departmental 2,519,842     1,670,419     849,423 66.29%

12,292,803  7,904,939    4,387,864    64.31%

Rev. Over/Under -                 1,879,850 (1,879,850)   

NOTE:

126



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 05/31/2022

02 UTILITY FUND
Budget Completed 66.67%

YTD Budget % of 
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance Budget
Water & Sewer Sales 5,450,118     3,565,600     1,884,518     65.42%
Fees & Penalties 132,500        173,452        (40,952)         130.91%
Miscellaneous 3,000            1,681            1,320            56.02%

5,585,618    3,740,732    1,844,886    66.97%

EXPENDITURES
Information Tech 61,500          54,251          7,249 88.21%
Utility Billing 120,192        80,655          39,537 67.11%
Meter Readers 143,398        288,398        (145,000) 201.12%
W/S Field Crew 976,124        623,162        352,962 63.84%
W/S Treatment Plant 2,818,601     1,686,806     1,131,795 59.85%
Debt Service Int. 780,776        634,723        146,053 81.29%
Non-Departmental 685,027        84,799          600,228 12.38%

5,585,618    3,452,793    2,132,825    61.82%

Revenue Over/Under -                 287,939 (287,939)      

NOTE:

127



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 05/31/2022

15 INTEREST & SINKING FUND
Budget Completed 66.67%

YTD Budget % of 
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance Budget
Property Taxes 2,097,822     2,170,925     (73,103)         103.48%
Intergovernmental -                 -                 -                 0.00%
Miscellaneous 318,750        772                317,978        0.24%

2,416,572    2,171,697    244,875        89.87%

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service 2,416,572     1,873,871     542,701 77.54%

2,416,572    1,873,871    542,701        77.54%

Revenue Over/Under -                 297,826 (297,826)      

NOTE:

128



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 05/31/2022

16 HOTEL/MOTEL FUND
Budget Completed 66.67%

YTD Budget % of 
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance Budget
Taxes 86,000          79,856          6,144            92.86%
Reserves/Misc. 134,165        2,369            131,796        1.77%

220,165        82,225          137,940        37.35%

EXPENDITURES
Advertisement 151,440        53,073          98,367 35.05%
Historic Preservation 43,000          -                 43,000 0.00%
Arts Promotion 12,900          -                 12,900 0.00%
Signage 12,825          -                 12,825 0.00%

220,165        53,073          167,092        24.11%

Revenue Over/Under -                 29,152 (29,152)         

NOTE:  

129



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 05/31/2022

43 SERIES 2018 CO

JTD Budget
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance
Bond Revenue 9,991,085     9,991,085     -                 
Interest Income 127,909        127,909        -                 
Miscellaneous 34,602          34,602          -                 

10,153,597  10,153,597  -                 

EXPENDITURES 96.86%
Ambulance Services 519,644        519,644        -                 
PD Vehicles 534,243        534,243        -                 
PW Vehicles 566,131        502,641        63,490          
Rescue Vehicles 33,165          33,165          -                 
Drainage Improv. 496,257        381,550        114,706        
Sewer Improv. 1,484,309     1,484,309     -                 
Lift Station Improv. 1,352,229     1,352,229     -                 
Street Overlays 3,460,085     3,460,085     -                 
Street Improvements 104,946        104,946        -                 
Water Improv. 1,401,378     1,260,786     140,592        
Non-Departamental 201,210        201,210        -                 

10,153,597  9,834,809    318,788        

Revenue Over/Under (0)                   318,788        (318,788)      

NOTE:  This fund is reported as Job to Date.

130



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 05/31/2022

46 EMS FUND
Budget Completed 66.67%

YTD Budget % of 
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance Budget
EMS Service Fees 700,000        198,029        501,971        28.29%
Misc 20,000          1,000            19,000          5.00%

720,000        199,029        520,971        27.64%

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Costs 127,082        60,543          66,539 47.64%
Contractual Sev. & Other 180,618        132,855        47,763 73.56%
Maintenance 33,000          29,378          3,622 89.03%
Supplies 129,300        54,967          74,333 42.51%
Capital Outlay -                 -                 0 0.00%
Non-Departamental 250,000        55,711          194,289 22.28%

720,000        333,455        386,545        46.31%

Revenue Over/Under -                 (134,426) 134,426        

NOTE:

131



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 05/31/2022

51 AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN
Budget Completed

JTD Budget % of 
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance Budget
APR Revenue 2,057,319     2,057,319     -                 100.00%
Intergovernmental -                 -                 -                 #DIV/0!
Miscellaneous 200                200                -                 100.00%

2,057,519    2,057,519    -                 100.00%

EXPENDITURES
Contractual Services 61,714          61,714          0 100.00%
Water Rate Study 9,675            
Fema Dome Drainage 43,590          
Revenue Loss 1,000,000     1,000,000     0 100.00%
PD Renovation 700,000        -                 

1,761,714    1,114,979    -                 63.29%

Revenue Over/Under 295,805        942,540 -                 

NOTE:  This fund is reported as Job to Date.

132



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 05/31/2022

52 SERIES 2021 CO

JTD Budget
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance
Bond Revenue-Other Financ 8,076,800     8,255,387     (178,587)       
Interest Income -                 5,387            (5,387)           
Miscellaneous -                 -                 -                 

8,076,800    8,260,775    (183,975)      

EXPENDITURES 130.83%
EMS/FIRE Equipment 782,765        782,765        -                 
PD Vehicles 161,200        (161,200)       
PW Equipment 139,753        245,045        (105,292)       
Planning Equipment -                 -                 
Library 17,586          17,586          
Water/Utility Improv. -                 -                 
Sewer/Utility Improv. 91,504          139,549        (48,045)         
Lift Station Improv. 493,826        493,826        -                 
Street Overlays -                 -                 
Street Improvements -                 -                 
Drainage Imrprov. 58,545          58,545          -                 
Non-Departamental (1,834)           171,366        (173,200)       

1,582,145    2,069,882    (487,737)      

Revenue Over/Under 6,494,655    6,190,893    303,762        

NOTE:  This fund is reported as Job to Date.

133



134



PLANNING DEPARTMENT

 (PERMITS/INSPECTIONS/ CODE ENFORCEMENT) 
PERMITS ISSUED October November December January February March April May  June July August Sept

Residential 33,770.05$    17620.4 18,066.25$   20,446.00$   26,540.00$   15,111.50$   1,197,755.50$     1,745,366.96$   

New Reidential Const 12 9 1 7 4

Commercial 2,471.50$      35240.8 1,523.75$     2,552.35$     2,079.00$     4,784.00$     10,042,729.00$   1,942,349.14$   

New Commercial Const 0 0 2 1 0

Total Cash Collected 36,241.55$    52,861.20$    19,590.00$   23,115.35$   57,084.00$   33,331.00$   21,694.85$          29,720.00$                -$           -$         -$           -$        

INSPECTIONS
Residential 272 280 211 244 298 341 243 258
Re-Inspections 21 20 8 15 24 22 26 20
Commercial 15 15 9 8 4 15 10 6
Re-Inspections 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 0
Health Inspections 19 5 7 7 10 15 7 4
Re-Inspections 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fire Inspections 9 20 12 14 8 76 16 17
Re-Inspections 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
OTHER
Vendor permits 14 40 3 3 1 2 2 0
Stock show Vendors 26 0 11 10 43 102 0 0
Outdoor sales permits 1 1 0 1 1 1 1 0
Peddlers permits 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
Stop work orders 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
New Contractors 12 9 10 12 7 12 19 18
Contractor Renewal 11 17 16 20 5 7 15 14

CODE ENFORCEMENT October November December January February March April May June July August Sept

accumulating junk 13 7 13 7 16 8 9 16

Closed incidents 5 2 8 8 7 3 3 0

Illegal dumping 9 7 24 24 13 16 19 25

Closed incidents 10 1 7 10 9 7 3 0

Junk Vehicles 8 4 9 7 0 38 16 48

Closed incidents 1 1 3 3 0 2 9 0

Livestock 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

Closed incidents 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Maintain Alley 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 16

Closed incidents 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Noxious Weeds 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 0

Closed incidents 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0

Vermin Harborage 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Closed incidents 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Stagnant Water 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 6

Closed incidents 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0

Truck Trailers 0 0 0 2 4 0 3 2

Closed incidents 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0

Health Isssues 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 7

Closed incidents 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

135



PLANNING DEPARTMENT

 (PERMITS/INSPECTIONS/ CODE ENFORCEMENT) 
Weedy Lots 94 83 44 33 129 30 78 11

Closed incidents 5 0 1 1 3 1 2 0

Signs 0 0 0 0 0 0 19 22

Closed incidents 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Home Violations 0 1 0 0 2 0 35 14

Closed incidents 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0

Zoning Violations 2 0 3 4 4 0 3 6

Closed incidents 0 0 2 2 1 0 0 0

Court Cases 4 1 0 1 2 3 6

INVOICES/ LEINS/ETC October November December January February March April May June July August Sept
Weedy Lot Invoices 25 36 3 67 8 24 32
Amount -$                3,355.25$      4,801.75$     407.75$        8,814.00$     1,021.25$     3,223.25$             4,288.30$          -$           -$         -$           -$        
Demolition Invoices 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Amount -$                -$                -$              -$              -$              -$              -$                      -$                    -$           -$         -$           -$        
Leins filed 3 0 24 5 0 0 0 0
Total Lein Amount 399.75$         -$                5,427.25$     927.50$        -$              -$              -$                      -$                    -$           -$         -$           -$        
Leins Released 2 7 1 0 0 2 2 1
Demolition Leins 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Lein Amount 399.75$         1,583.51$      141.25$        -$              -$              -$              -$                      -$                    -$           -$         -$           -$        
Payments Collected 497.75$         1,015.50$      399.75$        142.50$        1,029.75$     1,074.35$     2,221.50$             3,054.26$          -$           -$         -$           -$        
Yard Sales 36 30 25 18 23 86 43 50

Business Activities October November December January February March April May June July August Sept
New Business License 11 7 5 8 5 6 3 5

136



PLANNING DEPARTMENT

 (PERMITS/INSPECTIONS/ CODE ENFORCEMENT) 

0%

22%

14%

10%

16%

10%

12%

6%

10%

FY2021-2022

PERMITS ISSUED Residential New Reidential Const Commercial New
Commercial Const Total Cash Collected INSPECTIONS Residential Re-Inspections
Commercial Re-Inspections Health Inspections Re-Inspections Fire Inspections
Re-Inspections OTHER Vendor permits Stock show Vendors Outdoor sales
permits Peddlers permits Stop work orders New Contractors Contractor
Renewal CODE ENFORCEMENT accumulating junk Closed incidents Illegal
dumping Closed incidents Junk Vehicles Closed incidents Livestock Closed
incidents Maint

October  $33,770.05  New Reidential Const  $2,471.50  New Commercial Const
$36,241.55  INSPECTIONS 272 21 15 0 19 0 9 0 OTHER 14 26 1 0 0 12 11
October 13 5 9 10 8 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 94 5 0 0 0 0 2 0 4 October
Weedy Lot Invoices  $-    Demolition Invoices  $-    3  $399.75  2 0  $399.75
$497.75  36 October

November 17620.4 New Reidential Const 35240.8 New Commercial Const
$52,861.20  INSPECTIONS 280 20 15 1 5 0 20 0 OTHER 40 0 1 0 0 9 17
November 7 2 7 1 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 83 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 November 25
$3,355.25  0  $-    0  $-    7 0  $1,583.51   $1,015.50  30 November

December  $18,066.25  New Reidential Const  $1,523.75  New Commercial
Const  $19,590.00  INSPECTIONS 211 8 9 1 7 0 12 0 OTHER 3 11 0 0 0 10 16
December 13 8 24 7 9 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 44 1 0 0 0 0 3 2 0 December
36  $4,801.75  0  $-    24  $5,427.25  1 0  $141.25   $399.75  25 December

January  $20,446.00  12  $2,552.35  0  $23,115.35  INSPECTIONS 244 15 8 1 7 0
14 0 OTHER 3 10 1 0 0 12 20 January 7 8 24 10 7 3 1 0 1 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 2 0 0 0 33 1
0 0 0 0 4 2 1 January 3  $407.75  0  $-    5  $927.50  0 0  $-     $142.50  18 January

February  $26,540.00  9  $2,079.00  0  $57,084.00  INSPECTIONS 298 24 4 0 10 0
8 0 OTHER 1 43 1 0 0 7 5 February 16 7 13 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 1 0 0 129 3
0 0 2 0 4 1 2 February 67  $8,814.00  0  $-    0  $-    0 0  $-     $1,029.75  23
February

137



Mercedes Municipal Court

Revenue Collected by Citations

May 1, 2022 - May 31, 2022

City of Mercedes Revenue $7,499.37

State of Texas Revenue $3,449.32

Total Revenue Collected $10,948.69

Total Number of Cases (Dockets) Heard by Court - 20

Eduardo Mendoza, Municipal Court Coordinator

138


	6 A Consent - June 7, 2022
	6B - Planning Fees
	7A CM Comments - PD Personnel
	8A1 Ordinace - 6-21-22 REZONE FOR GROSSHAUSER'S
	8A2 ORDINANCE NO 2022-10 GROSSHAUSER'S SUBDIVISION
	9A1 Managment - National Fitness Campaign 6-16
	9A2 Management - National Fitness Campaign 2022 NFC Briefing Deck_BCBSTX
	9E
	10A Bids Contracts - City of Mercedes Energy Services Contract Proposal (4-23-22)
	10B Bids - PD Printer
	10C Bids - PD MOU
	11A1 PD May Report
	11A2 Fire Department May Report
	11A3 Library May Report Page 1
	11A3 Library May Report Page 2
	May

	11A4 Finance May Report Page 1
	2021-2022
	Chart2
	Chart3

	11A4 Finance May Report Page 2
	11A4 Finance May Report Page 3
	05.31.2022

	11A5
	11A6 Planning May Report
	11A7 Municipal Court May Report
	doc00374120220617162648



